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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Ve Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Hao Chi Minh City

REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of Hoa Binh Construction Group Joint Stock Coempany {"The Company") has the honar
of submitting this report and the audited consolidated financial statemnants of the company and the subsidiary ("The
Group") for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

1.

General information about Company
Establishment

Hoa Binh Construction Graup Joint Stock Company (English name iz Hoa Binh Construction Group Joint
Stock Company and short name is HECG) which is operating under Business Reglistration Certificate No.
0302158488 dated 01 December 2000 issued by Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh

Gity, the 38" amended on 08 August 2024,

Charter capital of the Company as at dated 31 Decamber 2023 is WND 2,741,332,700,000 and dated 31
December 2024 is VND 3,472,132,700,000.

Head office: No. 235, Vo Thi Sau Street, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.
The Company's principal activities

Business activities: The main activities of the Company and its subsidiaries include civil and industrial
construction: land leveling; construction consulting; manufacturing and trading of construction materials,
interior decoration items: house repair and interlor decoration services: real estate business and industrial
zone development for leasing,

Stock code: The Campany's shares are listed on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchangs with the trading code
HBC under Listing License No. 80/UBCK-GPNY issued by the State Securities Commission of Wietnarm on
22 Nevember 2006,

On 26 July 2024, Ha Chi Minh City Stock Exchange announced that HBC shares were subject to mandatory
delisting. According to announcement No. 1463/TB-SGOHCM of Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange dated 08
August 2024, the effective date of delisting is 08 September 2024, moving the trading floar from HOSE to
Upcom.

Members of the Board of Management , Members of the Audit committee, Board of General Director

Members of the Board of Management, Members of the Audit committee, Board of General Directar for the
fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 and to the reporing date are:

Members of the Board of Management

Mr,  LeViet Hai Chairman

Mr.  Le Viet Hieu Vige Chairman

Mirs, MNguyen Thi Luot Vice Chalrman

Mr.  LeMan Mam Member

Mr,  MNguyen Tuong Bao Independsnt member
Mrs,  Vu ThiHoa Independent member

Audit committee under the Board of General Director

Mr,  MNguyen Tuong Bao Chalrman

Mrs.  Wu ThiHoa Member

Members of the Board of General Director

bMr.  LeVan MNam General Director

Mr.  Le Viet Hieu Deputy Managing Director

Mr.  Mguyen Tan Tho Deputy General Director resigned on 30" April 2024

Mr,  Dinh Van Thanh Depuly General Director
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REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Mr.  Nguyen Hung Cuong Deputy General Director resigned on 21" September 2024
Mr,  Nguyen Khanh Hoang Deputy General Director
Deputy General Director appainted an 1™ May 2024 and resigned on
Mr. LeVan Vien 01" March 2025
Mr.  MNguyen Kinh Luan Deputy General Director appointsd on 01 May 2024
Mr.  Huynh Tan Quaoc Deputy General Director appointed on 01 March 2025

The legal representative of the Company during the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 and to the reparting
date is:

Wr. Le Viet Hal Chalrman

The Company’s financial position and results of operation

The Company's financial position and its operating result for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 are
reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Events subsequent o the balance sheet date

There have been no significant events occurring after the balance sheet date which would reguire
ad|ustments or disclosures to be mads in the Notss to the consalidated financial statements.

Audltar

AFC Vietnam audit Co,, Ltd have taken the audit of Consolidated Financial Statements for the Company for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024,

Statement of the Board of General Directors’s responsibility In respect of the consolldated financial
statements

The Board of General Directors of the Group Is responsible for the preparation of the consalidated financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2024 as
well as its results of operation and cash flows for the year then ended. In arder to prepare these cansolidated
financial statements, The Board of General Directors has considered and complied with the fallowing matters:

- Selected appropriate accounting pelicies and applied therm consistantly,

- Made judgments and estimates that are reasanable and prudent;

- State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statemeants,

- Prepare the consalidated financial statements on the going concern basic unless it Is inappropriate
ta presume that the Group will continue in business; and

- Design, implement and maintain the Group’s intarnal control for prevention and detsction of fraud
and error to preparation and presentation of the consclidated financial statements,

The Board of General Directors is responsible for ensuring that accounting records are kept to reflect the
financial position of the Group, with reasonable accuracy at any time and to ensure that the consolidated
Financial Statements comply with the current State's regulations. Itis responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps far the prevention and detection of fraud and cther

irreqularities,

The Board of General Directors commits to comply with the above requirements in preparing the
consalidated Financial Statements.
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T Approval of the consolidated financlal statements

We hereby approve the accompanying consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and the results of its operations and cash flows of
the Group for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards,

Vietnamase Accounting System and the statutary requirements relevant 1o the preparation and presentation
of consolidated financial statements.

Bafis|f ofthe Board of Management
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Chairman
HEME, 31 March 2025
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AFC Vietnam Auditing Co., Ltd, ; P KF
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No: 214/2025/BCKTHN-HCM.01509

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Tow Shareholders, Board of Manangement and Board of General Directors of

Hoa Binh Construction Group Joint Stock Company

\Wa have reviewed the consolidated financial statements of Hoa Binh Gonstruction Group Jeint Stock
Company and the subsidiary ("the Group" consisting of interim consolidated Balance Sheet as at
Diecember 31, 2024, consolidated Income Statement, consolidated Cash Flow Staternent for the fiscal year
then ended and Notes to the consolidated Financial Fiatements as set out on page 07 to page 74, which
were prepared on 31 March 2025.

Responsibilities of the Board of General Directors

The Board of General Directors is respansible far the preparation and fair presentation of the cansolidaled
financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Accounting System and
prevailing regulations applicable to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
stalemnents and also for the internal contral that the Board of General Directors considers necessary for the
preparation and fair presentation of consalidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these Separate financial statements based on our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing, Those standards require that
we comply with standards, ethical requirements; plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Separate financial statements are free from material misstatemant.

An audit involves performing procedures ta obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements, The procedures selectad depand on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditar considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order ta
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not far the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies uged and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
Board of General Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consclidated financial

slatements.

Wa balisve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinian.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Cont'd)

Basis for qualified audit opinion

As of the date of issuance of the auditor's report, we are unable to obtain fully confirmation letters on
raceivable and payable balances as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 in our sample, as

follow:

Dec, 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024

Cade VD WND

Trade aceounts receivable 131 2.251.182.365.872 2.499.684 548,901
Prepayments to suppliers 132 814 180.524 674  615.835.434.019
Other recelvables 136 B82.291.336.218 1.469.649.226 921
Short-term trade payables 3N 2.827.232 649,026 2.214.318,724.963
Advances from customers 312 852.721.189.828  971.975.513.489
Other short-term payables 319 B2.338.774.129 85.120.454 601

By other audit procedures petformed, we are unable to obtain fully necessary information to evaluate the
existence and completeness of the above items presented in the accompanying separate financial
statements.

Due to the special characteristics of the Group's business field, the Group is recording revenue from
canstruction activities based on the amount of work performed under the supervision of investor and the
contract price because the Group assumes that the revenus is estimated reliably. However, the Group's
construction contracts stipulate that the contractor is paid according to the valus of the work performed as
confirmed by the customer, Accardingly, revenue ls recognized when there is confirmation from customers
(investors) on payment certificates and shown on financial invoices. As of the date of issuance of the
auditor's report, the auditor do not have fully necessary information to detsrmine the impact of this matter
an related items on the Group's separate financial statements as at December 31, 2024,

Auditor's qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the sffects of the matter specified in paragraph "Basis for qualified opinion”, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial position
of the Group as at December 31, 2024 as well as the results of its operation and its cash flows for the year
then ended. The consolidated financial statements are prepared in compliance with ihe pravailing
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System and other slatutory requirements
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of matiers
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of below matters, as follows:

As the Group presented in Notes 1.6 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements, as at 31
December 2024, the Company had an accumulated loss of WND 2,290,313 875,724 (as at 31 December
2023 VND 2,240,326 644 959) and certain overdue debts. These indicators indicate the existence of
malerial uncertainties that may cast doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Howewver,
the accompanying cansolidated financial statements are still prepared by the Group's Board of Gensral
Directors on a going concern basls, as explained in Note 1.6,

th



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Cont'd)

Other matter

The consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 were audited by other
auditar and auditing firm. The auditar gave qualified opinion with an emphasis of matter for this financial
statement as gt March 29, 2024, as follows:

- The qualified because the auditor has not yet collected sufficient appropriate evidence regarding the
security of the advances, as well as not fully assessing the recoverability of these amounts and the auditar
has not yet collected sufficient confirmation letters of receivables and payables. The auditor also has not
agreaed with the Group's revenus recognition methed,

- Emphasis of matter about the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and certain advance transactions of the Company were
carried out without sufficient appropriate appraval, but were subsequently appraved by the Company’s
Board of General Directors,
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TRANGDAC NHA NGUYEN THI THANH MINH
Deputy General Director Auditor
Certificate of Audit Practice Registration Certificate of Audit Practice Registration
no.: 2111-2023-005-1 no ; 0068-2023-008-1

AFC VIETNAM AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED
HCMC, 31 March 2025



HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

ITEMS Codes
ASSETS
A - CURRENT ASSETS 100
I. Cash and cash equivalents 110
1. Cash 111
2. Cash equivalents 112
Il. Short-term financial Investments 120
1. Trading securities 121
2. Provision for devaluation of trading

securitles 122
3, Held-to-maturity investments 123
. Short-term Accounts recelvable 130
1. Trade accounts recelvable 131
2. Prepayments to suppliers 132
3. Intercompany recelvables 133
4. Construction contract-in-progress

receivables 134
5. Receivables from short-term loans 135
G. Other receivables 136
7. Provisian for doubtful debts 137
B. Shortage of assets awaiting resolution 139
. Inventories 140
1. [Inventories 141
2. Provision for decline in valus of inventories 149
[, Other current assets 150
1. Shor-term prepaid expenses 151
2. Deductible VAT 152
3, Taxes and other receivables fram

the State 153
4. Repurchase and sale of

Government's bonds 154
5. Other current assetls 155

Motes

5.1

517

0.2
2.4

5.4
5.5
0.8
5.7

5.8

5.1

5.20

Dec. 31, 2024
VYND

Jan. 01, 2024
VND

13.734.790.520.380

268.157.396.740
261.657.396.740
6,500.000.000

14.116.633.715

14.116.633.715

11.012.402.265.152
5.851.546.665 935
1.148.112.923 939

2.260.215.162.259

257.180.568.857
2.301.412.491.045
{1.897.075.557 BE3)

2.357.127.255.268
2.308,702.177.680
{38.674.922.412)

B2.986.9859.505
15.675.228.5907
B2.572.707.775

4.738.052.823

13.449.275.190.035

388.531.074.372
288713103 677
BA.817.970.626

15.705.823.005

15.705:.823.005

10.669.825.106.321
7.232.680.258.971
1,085.691.012.027

3.082.749.777.246

56.992.144 281
1.678.209.750.074
{2.476.507.836.278)

2.278.108.073.684
2.233.547 446.966
{65.438.373.282)

897.105.112.652
15.982.541.307
76.686.829.830

4.435.941.610




HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, He Chi Minh City

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

ITEMS Code
B - LONG-TERM ASSETS 200
l. Long-term receivables 210
1. Long-term trade receivables 211
2. Lohg-term prepayments to suppliers 212
3. Working capltal from sub-units 213
4, Long-term intercompany receivables 214
5, Receivables from long-term loans 215
8. Other long-term receivables 216
7. Provision for doubtful long-term receivables 218
Il. Fixad assets 220
1. Tangible fixed assets 221
- Cost 222
- Accumulated depraciation 223
?. Finance lease assels 224
- Cost 225
- Accumiltated depraciation 226
3. Intangible fixed assets 227
- Cost 228
- Aecumulated amortization 224
. Investment Properties 230
- Cost 231
- Accumulated depreciation 232
V. Mon-current assets In progress 240
1. Warks in progress 241
2. Capital construction in progress 242
V. Laong-term investments 250
1. investments in subsidiaries 251
2. Investments in associates, |oint-ventures 262
3. Investments in equity of other entilies 263
4. Provision for decline in the value of
long-term investments 254
& Held-ta-maturity investments 255
Vl. Other long-term assets 260
1. Long-term prepaid expenses 261
2. Deferred income tax assets 262
3. Eguipment, materials, spare parts 263
4, Other long-term assets 2BE
5, Goodwill 258
TOTAL ASSETS 270

Motes

5.6

512

513

5.14

B.15

510

5.17

3.1
6.10

518

Dec. 31, 2024
VND

Jan. 01, 2024
VYHND

1.676.967.288,663
256.105.017.022

256.105.017.022

660.064.088,261
05.292.338 147
1.632.910.727.983
(1.027.618.389.836)
4.336.650.000
7.542.000,000
(3.205.350.000)
50.435.100.114
80.108.731.869
(29,673,631.755)

163.928.269.415
167.838.198.332
{3.208.820.917)

48.161.028.276

48.161.028.276
304.8BB0.707.418

276.399.494 348
4(.427.400.000

(14.090.372.798)
2.144.186.871

243.828.178.270
185.431.288.136
46.142.434.714

12.254.455.420

1.800.581.846.186
381,189.887.191

381.189.887.131

713.324.367.420
654.108,793.807
2.056.834.731.087
{1.402.635 837.290)
5.090.850.000
7.542.000.000
(2.451.150.000)
£4.034.723.613
80.805.831.865
{26.775.108.256)

9.664.380.060
12.826.425 717
{3.262.045.857)

46.625.832.614

46.525.832.614
334.520.184.945

310.155.828.864
40.427.400.000

{18.063,143.919)
2.000.000.000

316.357.193.956
263.023.075.148
48,659.271.041

13.664.847 766

15.411.757.819.043

15.249.8567.036.221




HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

ITEMS Code
RESQOURCES
C - LIABILITIES 300
I.  Current liabilities 310
1. Shart-term trade payables 311
2, Advances from customers 32
3. Taxes and other payables to the

State Budget 313
4. Payables to emplayees 314
5. Short-term accrued expenses 315
8. Short-term intercompany payables 318

Caonstruction contract-in-progress

payables 7

Short-term unrealized revenue 318

Other shart-term payables 319
10. Short-term borrowings and financlal lease 320
11. Provisian for short-term payables 321
12. Banus and welfare fund 322
13. Price stahilization fund 323
14, Repurchage and sale of

Government's band 324
. Long-term llabilities 330
1. Long-term trade payables 33
2. Lang-term Advances from customers 332
3. Long-term acorued expenses 333
4. |Inter-company payables for

pperating capital received 334
5 Long-term intercompany payables 335
6. Long-term unrealized revenus 336
7. Other long-term payables 337
8. Long-term borrowings and financial

lease liabilities a3a
8, Convartible bond 338
10. Preferred shares 340
11. Deferred income tax liabilities 341
12 Pravision for long-term liabilities 342
13 Fund for science and technolagy

developmant 343

Motes

518
518

5.20

5.21

522
5.23
5.24
5.25

3.23

524

B.11
5.25

Dec. 31, 2024
YND

Jan. 01, 2024
VMD

13.663.857.821.712

12.410.681.510.139
4,170,738.166.423
2.273.220.916.723

244 487 085,983
431.980.736.848
918.602.188.309

35 216.877.725
442 B02.071.968
3.818.308.058.953
72.821.813.432
2.385.489.764

1.253.176.311.572

30,523.633.458

532,421 152.665

523.055.312.412
167.176.213.038

15.156.476.047.931

13.703.264.560.386
4,801,022 541 177
2.779.311.818.648

218.575,220.665
452.365.145.387
916.0459.825.475

44,800.280.678
444 032 242,231
3.995.332.055.693
45.118.084.490

2 B56.131.927

1.453.211.487.605

37.658.757.517

722.676,321.008

481.5058.757.177
201.370.651,005




HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, He Chi Minh City

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2024

ITEMS Code
D - OWNERS' EQUITY 400
. Cwmners' equity 410
1. Owners' capital 411

- Ordinary shares with voting rights d411a

- Preferred shares 411b
2. Share premium 412
3. Bond conversion option 413
4. Owners' other capital 414
5. Treasury shares 415
B. Difference upoh assets revaluation 416
7. Faoreign exchange differences 417
B, Investment and development fund 418
9. Fund far support of arrangement of

enterprises 419
10. Other funds 420
11, Undistributed earnings 421

- Undistributed earnings

accumulated ta the end of prior

period 421a

- Undistributed earnings In this period 421b
12. Investment reserve for basic construction 422
i3, Mon - controlling interest 429
Il. Budget sources and other funds 430

Budget sources 431
2. Fund to form fixed assets 432

TOTAL RESOURCES 440

//"'

¥
-

T

L

. il

MNotes

5.26

()
e

DANG NGUYER NAM TRAN
Prepared

LE THI THU TRANG
Chief accountant

Dec. 31, 2024
VYND

Jan. 01, 2024
YND

1.747.8989.897.330

1.747.890.9597.330
3.472.132.700.000
3.472132.700.000

458.569.112.881

56.445.089
§6.709.581.725

{2.289.2313.875.724)

{3,266.949.539.825)
B57.635.664.101

18.746,023.249

03.380.988.230

83.380.888.220
2,741.332.700.000
2.741,332.700.000

458, 9649.112.981

56.445.089
06.836.842.472

(3.240.326.544.059)

(2.131.503.365.907)
(1.108.523.289 052)

36.512.532.637

af O pHAN
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§ ] le F o "
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15.411.757.819.043

15.249.857.036.221

o

LE VIET HAI
Chairman

HCMC, 31 March 2025
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOQCK COMPANY

236 Vo Thi Sau, Va Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

ITEMS Code MNotes
1. Rewvenues from sales of good and
rendering of services | 6.1.1
2. Revenue deductions 02 6.1.2
3, Met revenues from sales of goad and
rendearing of servicas 10 8.1.3
4, Cost of sales 11 6.2
5. Gross profit 20
8. Financial income 21 6.3
7. Financial expenses 22 6.4
fn wihich: loan infterest expenses 23
Gains/losses In associatas, joint-
8. ventures 24 6.3
8, Selling expenses 25 6.6.1
10. General and administratian expenses 26 6.6.2
11. Operating profit a0
12. Other income 31 6.7
13. Other expenses 32 8.8
14. Other profit 40
15. Total net profit befora tax 50
16, Current corporate income fax expense &1 5.9.1
17. Deferrad corporate incame tax expensa 52 B.12
18. Profit after corporate income tax 60
Profit after tax attributable to owners of
the parent &1
Profit after tax attributable to non -
_cuntmlling interest B2
19, Earnings per share 70 6,13
20. Diluted earnings per share 71 6.13

s

l." =y

i// "”,? Ca PHAN |\
v OOAN 1LY 245
f o

Yoar 2024
VD

Year 2023
VND

8.425.200.748.471 7.542.214.414.041
5117.833. 183

4,265.826.317

6.420.844.022.154 7.537.006.580.846
6.063.288.750.882 7,293.009.825 276

_ 357.555.131.172 244.086.755.570
244,659.048.005 74.274.693.895
407.663.872.217 559.457.321.904
404.156.249,744 557,095.371,780
(26.447.830.400) (37.876.217.593)

36.187.206.813 36.746.415 801
(266.891.075.289) 757.700,729.472
 398.806.346.027  (1.075.419.235.305)
635.840.175.276 £3.027.033,303
25,294,997 286 57.424,500,224
610.545.177.990 {4.397.566.921)

1.009.351.523.017 {1.079.816.792.226)

13.745.134.129

7.545.441.521
32.643.906,282 27.975,288.521

962,962.482.606  (1.115.337.522.268)

059.786.100.623 (1.110.747.482 552}

DANG NGUYEN NAM TRAN

LE THI THU TRANG

Prepared Chief accountant

3.176.351.983 {4.590.025.718)
3,089 {4.052)
3.089 (4.052)
— =
'1';‘ IE‘
CONG Tv /r/

\Lt'
x\:‘_.r 1__ \_ -

——t” k\'\. = o
'\_\_‘ I_I _|

-u'lrl""-

LE VIET Hal
Chairman

HCMC, 31 March 2025
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

{Under indirect method)
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

ITEMS

Code

Year 2024
VND

Year 2023
VND

I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1.
2,

Met profit before tax

Adjustments for :
- Depreciation of fixed assets & investment propertiss

- Provisions
- Gainsflosses from foreign exchange differences

upon revaluation of maonetary assets denominated in
- Gains/losses from investing activities

- |nterest expense

- Cher adjustments

. Profit from operating activities before changes

in working capital
- Increase (-)f decraase (+) in receivables
- Increase {-)f decrease (+) in inventories

- Increase (+)f decrease (-} in payables {Other than
payables, income tax)

- Increase {-)f decrease (+) in prepaid expenses
- Increase {-)f decrease (+) in trading securities
- Intarest paid

- Corporate income tax paid

- Other receipts from operating activities

- Other payments on opsrating activities
Net cash inflows/{outflows} from operating

activities

. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

. Purchases of fixed assets and other long-term assets
. Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and other

long-term assels

. Loans granted, purchases of dsbt instruments of

other entities

. Collection of Inans, procseds from sales of debt

instruments of other entities

. Investments in other entities
. Proceeds from divestment in cthear entities
. Dividends and interest received

Met cash inflows/{outflows) from investing
activities

01

02
03

04
D3
D&
o7

08
03
10

11
12
13
14
15
16
17

20

21

22

23
24

25
26
27

30

1.009.351.523.047

163.603.969.383
(554.717.537.785)

16.357.690
(742.657.283.906)
404.156.249.744

279.753.278.143
B76.491.770.485
{63.154.730.714)

(432.073.547.877)
67.895.590.413

(421.887.715.480)
(7.285.686.353)

63.311.670

299.795.579.268

(193,584.210.680)
204.258.591,380
(126.513.060.985)

58.228.160.616
(2.153.907.732)
74.402.520.000
14,029 487,175

28.667.579.777

{1.079.816.792.226)

241,775,824 508
412 928,837 836

178.601.329
(3.778.002.965)
R57.095.371.780

128.383.840.413
2.044.659,746.432
(74.989.354.377)

{585.406.557,146)
153,344 548 584

(548.791.535.045)
(3,386.162.841)

{1.394.917.336)

1.112.419.608.684

(B.058.003.841)
43,386,034 BEE
(51.170.418.344)

154.736.111.733

33.170.407 349
3.561.206.568

175.565.427.253
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vio Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

{Under indirect method)
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Year 2024 Year 2023

ITEMS Code VND VND
lll. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1. Proceeds from issue of shares and capital

contributian 31 - 23.000.000.000
2, Payments for shares returns and repurchases 32 - -
3. Proceeds from borrowings 33 2.625,776.420.452 3.295.260.763.168
4. Repayments of borrowings a4 {3.073.904.487 628) (4, 709.057.152 612}
5. Repayments for finance lease liabilities 35 (711.102.864) {711.102.864)
6. Dividends paid a6 {4.201.838.112)
Met cash inflows/{outflows) from
financing activities 40 (448.839.170.041) {1.385.709.330.420)
Met cash inflowsf{outflows) (50 = 20+ 30 + 40) 50 {120.376.010.996) (107.724.294.483)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year G0 388.531.074.373 496.252.501.750
Effect of foreign exchange differences &1 2.333.363 2787106
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
{70 = 50+60+61) 70 268.157.396.740 388.531.074.373

DANG NGUYEM NAM TRANM
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LE THI THU TRANG
Chief accountant

Chairman
HCMS, 31 March 2025
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
215 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ha Chi Minh Gity

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These noles form an infegral part of the ffnancfaf statemants.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

Establishment

Hoa Binh Construction Graup Joint Stack Company (English name is Haa Binh Canstruction Group Joint
Stack Company and short name is HBCG) which is operating under Business Registration Ceriflcate No.
0302158498 dated 01 December 2000 issued by Department of Planning and Investment af Ha Chi Minh
City, tha 38th amended on 08 August 2024.

Charer capital of the Company as at dated 31 December 2023 s VND 2,741,332,700,000 and dated 31
December 2024 is WYND 3.472,132,700,000,

Head office: No. 235, Yo Thi Sau Strast, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City, Wistnam.

The Company's shares are listed on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange with the trading code HBC under
Listing License No, B0/UBCK-GPNY issued by the State Securities Commission of Vietnam on 22 November

2008,

On 26 July 2024, Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange anncunced that HBC shares were subject to mandatory
delisting. According ta announcement No. 1463/TB-SGDHCM of Ho Chi Minh Gity Stock Exchange dated 09
August 2024, the effective date of delisting Is 08 Septemnber 2024, moving the trading floar from HOSE to
Upcom.

Business field
Canstruction, manufacturing, trading of construction materials and real estate business.

Business activities

The main aclivities of the Company and Its subsidiaries include civil and industrial construction; land leveling,
construction consulting: manufacturing and trading of construction materials, interior decoration items; house
repair and interior decoration services; real estate business and industrial zone development far leasing.

MNormal business and production cycle

Construction and real estate business activities are carried out over construction period and implementation
of investment projects, depending on the scale and technical characteristics of the prajects. Typically, the
business and production cycle for these activities of the Company is more than 12 months.

For ather activities, the normal productian and business cycle is 12 months.

The Company's operation in the year that affects the Consolidated Financial Statements

According to the disposal and sale of asset Decision Mo.1 12/2024/QB-HEC dated 19 June 2024 of the Board
of Management of the Company about the disposal and sale of asset and and signed asset transfer contracts
with the asset transfer price of VMD 635,146,262 741 {excluding VAT), asset value of VND 5840 635 368,049,

Accarding o Resolution No.14.1/2024/NC-HDQT. HBC dated 18 June 2024 of the Board of Management, the
Company has signed a capital transfer contract Mo, 50/2024/HB-HBC-AVA to transfer 32,31% ownership
rights of the Company in Anh Viet Mechanical and Aluminum Glass Corporation to Mr. Mai Dinh Chi Quoc
with & total value of YND 29,340,000,000.
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPARY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Va Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

1.6

According to Resalulion No.14.2/2024/NQ-HDQT. HBC dated 18 June 2024 of the Board of Management, the
Company has signed & capital transfer contract No. 49/2024/HE-HBC-JHE to transfer 47,82% ownership
rights of the Company in Jesca Hoa Binh Engineering Joinl Stock Company to Mr. Pham Dieu with a total
value of WND 38,326,772,000.

Accarding to Resolution No.04.1/2024/NQ-HDQOT.HEC dated 24 March 2024 of the Board of Management,
the Company has signed a capital tranafer contract No. 01/2024/HBG-TDP to transfer 100% ownership rights
of the Company in Matec Group Jaint Stock Company to Mr. Le Quang Hong Dung and Mrs. Ho Hoai
Phuong, Mr. Phan Ngoc Tho with a total value of WD 105 000,000,000,

The Company contributed capital according to Resolution MNo. 21 212024/NQ-HPQT.HEC dated August 01,
s023 from the Board of Management on approving to establish Pax Trading and Investment Joint Stock
Company with a charter capital of VND 10 billion, of which the Company will cantribute VD 9.8 billion
{representing 98% of the charer capital).

According to Resolution No,15/2024/NQ-HDQT.HBC dated 19 June 2024 of the Board of Management, the
company approved dossier for private stock issurance for debt swap of the campany and and campleted the
swap on dated 29 June 2024,

Assumption on going concern

As at 31 December 2024, the Company recorded an accumulated |oss of VND 2,299,313,875,724 (campared
to VND 3,240 326,644,959 as at 31 December 2023) and a number of averdue debts. Eurthermore, the real
estate market continued to stagnate, with significantly reduced liquidity for real estate developers, which had
a considerable impact the Coampany’s operating results and debt repayment cash flow. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability
to continue an the going concern. However, the Consolidated financial statements far the fiscal year ended as
at 31 December 2024 are still prepared by the Board of General Directars based on the going concern
assumption for the following reasons,

{i1 1ssuance of additional shares

As at 29 June 2024, the Group announced the results of the share issuance to debt swap with a total quantity
of 73.080.000 shares, helping to increase charter capital by an additional YND 730,800,000,000,

(i} Business plan and debt collection plan

This year, the Group's business strategy is to continue ta expand domestic and foreign markets. In the United
States; the Group started construction of The Grove Apartments project in California in April 2024, In addition
to potential projects that the Group is participating in in many countries, the Group will soon implement two
major infrastructurs projects in Cambodia in 2025,

Simultaneously, the Company is enhancing its investment capabilities, operational management, and
exploitation of social hausing projects both domestically and internationally, The Company is also
collaborating with numerous domestic investors on projects invalving the renovation of apartmant bulldings
and urban areas in various provinces across the country, including Ho Chi Minh City, Hanoi, Hai Phang, Winh
Fhuc, Bac Giang, Quang Nam, Da Nang, Binh Thuan, Dong Mai, and others.

The Company plans to continue strengthening its debt collection efforts, particularly for outstanding
racaivables, thraugh various effective measures, including resolving disputes via the courts and arbitration.
The recovery of debts from ongoing and previously completed projects over the next 12 months is expectsd
to generale significant cash flow to support busingss operations and settle the Company's liahilities,
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' HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 o Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh Gity

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These notes form an integral part of the financial statemen!s.

1.7

1.8

1.9

{iii) The Board of General Director |s eonfident that the government will continue to implement poficies to
alleviate difficulties in the real sstate market and that the State Barik will soan approve the extension of debt
restructuring policies and maintain the current loan classifications to support struggling businesses. The
Company expects ta reach agreements on restructuring upcoming debt malurities and secure new credit from
financial institutions to meet working capital needs for its business operations.

Based on the plans outlined abave, the Board of General Directors has evaluated and believes that the
Company will have sufficlent working capital for ils busingss operations and will have adequate cash flow to
meet the Company's obligations due within the next 12 months from the dats of issuance of these
Consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the Company' Consalidated Financial Statements far the
fiscal year ended 31 December 2024, have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Comparabllity of information In Consolidated financial statements

The information In the Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 can
be campared between fiscal year.

The number of employees as at 31 December 2024 1,330 employees {31 December 2023: 2163
amployees).

Group structure

The Group has a dependent accounting represantative office at the address: 20th Floar, 36 Hoang Cau, O
Cho Dua Ward, Dong Da District, Hanai City.

List of Cansalidated Subsidiaries Financial Statements as of 31 December 2024,

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has eight (08) directly owned company as follows:
Praportion of voting

Mame of company Principal aclivities Rate of interest i Buslness situation
Hoa Binh House Developing real
Corporation estate projects 99 96% Qo oY% Active
Hoa Binh Infrastructure Investing in and
Canstruction Investment constructing
Carporation industrial zones a7 87% a7 97% Active
Manufacturing
and trading of
construction
materials; and
Hoa Binh Paint and providing interior
Coatings Joint Stock  decoration
Company services T4,58% 74,58% Active

16

K .1

o



HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year endad 31 December 2024

Thase notes form an integral part of the financial stalements.

Proportion of voting

Mame of campany Principal activiies ~ Rate of interest rights

Business situation

Providing
architectural
design services
and design
consulting

Hoa Binh Architects Co., services for
Lkd canstruction. 75,00% 75,00%

Designing,
constructing, and
providing
technical
Inspection
sanvices,
canstruction
management,
and project

Hoa Binh Myanmar management

Company Limited services, 100,00% 100,00%

Research and
development of
technalogy in the
field of science,
Hoa Binh Innowation engineering, and
Center Company Limited techinology. 100,00% 100,00%

Gaonstruction
cansulting,
project survey,
project
Haa Binh Architectura and architectural
planning company limited ~ design 51,00% 51,00%

Pax Commercial and Office building
Investment Joint Stock leasing and
Company management 4B, 50% 08 .59%

Agtive

Active

Active

Active

Active



HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has fourteen (14) indirectly owned company as follows:

Namea of company

Principal activities

Rate af interast

Proportian of voting
rights

Business situation

Okamura Sanyo Property
Corporatian

Pax Sky Saigon Company
Limited

Tien Phat Real Estate
Investment Corporation

Tien Phat Sanyo Homes
Corparation

Sai Gon New Day
Company Limitad
Tien FPhat Tan Thuan

Caorporation

Tien Phat Morth-East
Company Limited

Real estate
consulting,
managament and
birokerage

Real estate
cansulting,
management and
brokerage

Real estate
business and
land usa rights,
as well as
construction of
various types of
houseas,

Real estate
businass and
land use rights

Developing real
estate projects

Real astate
business and
land usa rights

Real estate
business

Manufacturing,
tracling,
processing and
installing
hausehald
wooden products
and interior

Intethouse LA Corporation decoration items

50,55%

a%,06%

99,74%

§9,32%

99,74%

89,24%

09,74%

87 59%

50,57%

100,00%

99, 79%

99,58%

100,00%

89,45%

100,00%

09, 62%

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUFP JOINT STOCK GOMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh Gity

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These notes farm an infegral part of the financial statemants.

Mamea of company

Principal activities Rate of intarest

Prapartion of veting
rights

Business situation

Hoa Binh Renewakble
Energy & Investment
Corporation

Hea Yen Investment and
Develapment Joint Stock
Company

Hoa Binh Hue Investment
and Davelopmeant Joint
Stock Company

Haa Binh Ha Moi
Construction and Real
Estate Company Limitad

Moc Hoa Binh
Manufacturing and
Decorating Company
Limited

HEIS LLC

Trading in
construction
materials, interior
decoration itemns,
pramoting
COMMmerce,
acling as a
consignment
agent for goods,
advertising
services,
installation, and
processing of
Interiar

decoration ilems 86, 73%

Investing In
construction
projects for
transpartation

infrastructure B7 53%

Investing in the
construction of
the luxury resor
villa Le Royal An

Mam 83,00%

Constructing
various types of
houses;
completing
construction
projects; site
preparation;
installing water
supply and
drainage
systems; interior
decoration; and
real estate

business o7 97%

Manufacturing,
trading,
processing and
installing wooden
household
products and
interior

decoration items a7, 30%

Providing mobile
restaurant and

catering services a7,97%

BB 53%

88, 55%

95 84%

100.00%

99,31%

100,00%

Active

Active

Temporarily
syspended from
operations

Tempararily
suspended from
operations

Active

Active
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HOA BINH CONSTRUGTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 2, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 Decamber 2024

These notes form an integral part of the financial statemonts.

24

2.2

34

3.2

4.1

Information ahout the Group's restructuring:

The Group has transfered 100% ownership rights of the Group in Matec Group Jaoint Stock Company to Mr,
Le Guang Hong Dung and Mrs. Ho Hoal Phuong, Mr. Phan Ngoc Tho with a total value of VD
105,000,000,000.

The Group has transfered 32,31% ownership rights of the Group in Anh Viet Mechanical and Aluminum Glass
Corporation to Mr. Mai Dinh Chi Guoc with a total value of WND 29,340,000,000.

The Group has transfered 47,82% ownership rights of Jesco Hoa Binh Engineering Joint Stock Company to
Mr. Pham Dieu with a total value of VND 38,326,772,000.

ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND REPORTING CURRENCY

Flscal year

The fiscal year is begun on January 01 and ended December 31 annually.

Raporting currency

Vistnam Dong (VYMND) is used as a currency unit for accounting records because receipts and payments are
mainly made in VMD currency.

STANDARDS AND APPLICABLE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Applicable Accounting Standards and System

Financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with vVietnamese Corporate Accounting
Regime issued under Circular No. SI02014TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014, Circular No. 53/20168/TT-
BTC dated 21 March 2016 of the Ministry of Finance and Vietnamese Accounting Standards.

The Group applies Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting Regime issued
under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC, Circular Mo, 53/2016/T T-BTC and circulars guiding the implementation
of accounting standards of the Ministry of Finance in preparing and presenting financial statements.

The Group applies Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corparate Accounting Regime issued
under Circular No, 202/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 Dacember 2014 and circulars guiding the implementation of
accounting standards of the Ministry of Finance in preparing and presenting cansolidated financial slatements.
Disclosure of compliance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and the Vietnamese Accounting
System

The Board of General Directors ensures compliance with the reguirements of \ietnamese Accaunting
Standards and Vietnamese Corporate Accounting Regims issued under Circular Mo, 200/2014/TT- BTG and
Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC as well as circulars guiding the implementation of accounting standards of the
Ministry of Financs in preparing and presenting consolidated financial statements.

APPLICABLE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles for converting the financial staternents made in foreign currency in Yietnam Dong

When converting the financial statements made in fareign currency in Vietnam Dong, the accountant convert
the items In the financial statements in accordance with the following rules:

- Assats and liabilities are converted into Vistnam Dong at the actual exchange rate at the end of the year;
- Dwners' equity is converted at the actual exchange rate at the date of capital contribution,
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Yo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 Decamber 2024

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

4,2

4.3

- Foreign exchange differences and differences upon assets revaluation ars canverted at the actual
exchange rate at the date of valuation;

- Already-paid profit, dividends have been translated inta Vietnam Dong at the actual exchange rate at the
payment date;

- Iterns of income statements and cash flow statements are canverted at the actual exchangs rate at the time
of the transaction or at the average exchangs rates If the difference does not exceed 3% in comparison with
the actual rate.

Foreign exchange differences araising when converting financial statements prepared in foreign currencies
into Vietnam Dong under the item "exchange rate differences" - the owner's equity of the Balance Sheet,

Forelgn currency transactions

The Group has translated foreign currencies into Vietnam Dong at the actual rate and book rate.

Principles for determining the actual rate

All ransactions denominated in foreign currencies which arise during the period (trading forsign currencies,
capital contribution or receipt of contributed capital, recording receivables and payables, purchasing assets or
costs immediately paid by fareign currencies) are converted at the actual exchange rates ruling as of the
lransaction dates.

Closing balance of monetary items {cash, cash equivalents, payables and recelvables, except for
prepayments to suppliers, prepayments fram customers, pre-paid expenses, deposits and unsearnetd revenue)
denaminated in foreign currencies should be revaluated at the actual rate ruling as of the balance sheet date.

. For asset accounts, applying bid rates of commercial banks where the Campany regularly conducts
transaction;

_ For liahility accounts, applying offer rates of commercial banks where the Company regularly conducts
transactions.

Foreign exchange differences, which arise from fareign currency transactions during the year, shall be
included in the income statement. Foreign exchange differences due to the revaluation of ending balances of
the monetary items in foreign currencies after offsetting their positive differences against negative differences
shall be included in the incame statemant,

Basls of consolidation

The interim cansolidated financial statements are prepared an the accrual basis of accounting (except for
cash flow information).

Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared based on consolidating Separate Financial Statemants of
the Company and Financial Statements of its subsidiaries under its contral as at 31 December annually.

The financial statements of the subsidiary are consolidated from the purchase date when the Company starts
control to the date it ceases the control,

The subsidiaries' financial statements are prepared for the same accaunting periad as the Parent Company’s
undar the accounting policles in consistency with the Parent Company's,

Balance, main incomes and expenses, including unrealized profits from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full fram Consalidated financial statements.

Mon - controlling interests

Nan-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the owners of a
subsidiary and are presented separately in the consolidated income statement and separately from the
awners' equity in the consolidated balance sheet.
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These noles form an infegral part of the financial statements.

4.4

4.5

4.6

Profit and loss when there is a change in the Company's ownership In subsidiaries

In case the Parent company reduces their investment in subsidiaries without losing control over the
subsidiaties: Profitloss recorded into retained eamings in the Consolidated financial statements is the
difference between the receipt from divestment and the total value of net assets transferred to non -
controlling interests and correspanding goodwill,

Accounting estimates

The preparation of Financial Statements In confarmity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Corporate Accounting System and legal regulations relating o financial reporting requires the Board of
Ganeral Director to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amaunts of liabilities, assets
and disclosures of contingent liabllities and assets at the date of the Consalidatad financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the fiscal year.

The estimates and assumptians that have a material impact in the Cansolidated Financial Statements include:

- Provision for bad debts,

- Prawision for devaluation of inventory,

- Estimated uzeful life of fixed assets,

- Allocation of prepaid expenses and goodwill;

- Classification and provision of financial investments;
- Estimated provision for payables;

- Estimated corporate income taix.

Such estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated. They are based an historical experience and
other factors, including expsctations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and
that are assessed by the Board of General Directors to be reasonable under the circumstances,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and cash in transit, Cash equivalents are short-term
investments with the maturity of not over than 3 manths from the date of investment, that are highly liquid and
readily convertible into known amount of cash and that are subjsct to an insignificant risk of conversion into
cash.

Business cambination and goodwill

All business combinations shall be accounted far by applying the purchase method. The cost of a business
combination includes the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets glven, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the acquirer, in exchange for cantral of the acguiree
plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The acquirea’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities In business combination are measured at their fair values at the at the acquisition
date.

The goodwill or interest fram a cheap purchasa is defined as the difference between the cost of lhe business
combination and acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets at the acquisition date held
by Parent, Cheap purchase interast (if any) will be racognized in the consolidated income statement. Goodwill
is allocated to costs by the straight-line methed for an estimated useful peried of 10 years. Periodically the
Company will assess goadwill losses at the subsidiary, if therz is evidence that the loss of goodwill is greater
than the annual allocation, the allocation shall be based on the loss of goodwill in the year of arising.
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These notas form an integral part of the financial statements.

4.7

Financial investments

Accounting held-to-maturity Investments

Held-to-maturity Investments ars term deposits and held-to-maturity loans for the purpose of periodic interest
receiving.

Accounting loans

Loans are the amounts granted accarding to contracts and agreements signed between the two parties for
the purpose of periadically collecting Interests and recarded at the orginal cost less provision far doubtful
debts, The provision far doubtful debts is made on the basis of the estimates an the loss due to overdue,
undue debts that are unlikely to be recorved because of the insolvency.

Einanclal investments in Associates

In the Consolidated Financial Statements, investments in joint ventures and associates are accaunted for
using equity method. Under this method, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Company’s share in net assets of the associate after
acquisition date. Goodwill incurred from the investment in the associates is reflected in the carrying amount of
the investmeart in the associate. The Company will not allocate such goodwill but assess annually to
determine whether the goodwill is under impaired loss or nat,

For the adjustment of the value of investments in joint ventures and associates from the date of investment to
the heginning of the reporting year, the Campany shall

- For the adjustment to the income statement of previous years: make an adjustment to the undistributed
arofit after tax according to net adjusted accumulated amount to the beginning of the reparting year.

~ For the adjustment due to the difference in revaluation of assets and the difference in foreign exchange
rates, recarded in the balance sheet of the previous years: determine the adjustmant to the corresponding
ltems on the balance sheet according to net accumulated adjusted amount.

For the adjustment of the value of investments in joint ventures and associates arlsing in the year, the
Company shall exclude the preferred dividends of other shareholders [if preferred shares are classified as
Owner's capital), expected number of deductions for bonus and welfare funds of joint ventures and
associates; share of profits related to transactions of joint ventures, associates contributing capital or selling
assets ta the Company before determining the Company's share In the profit ar loss of the jaint venture or
associated company during the reporting year. The Company then adjusts the value of the investment in
nropartion to its share In profits and losses of joint ventures and associates and immediately recognizes it in
the consolidated income statement.

Finaricial Statements of associates are prepared in the same period with the Group's consalidated financial
statemants and use the consistent accounting policies with the Group's pelicies.

Investments in other entities

Investments in other entities are recorded at cost.

Provision for devaluation of Investments

Provisions for impairmant of investments are made when there is certaln evidence of a decline in the value of
these investments at the end of the annual accounting petind.

Increases or decreases in the provision balance are recorded as financial expenses in the separate
statemant of income.
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These noles form an infegral part of the financial staterments.

4.8

4.8

4.10

Receivables

Receivables are presented at book value less provisiens for doubtful debts,

The classifications of receivables are trade receivables and other receivables, which complied with the
following principles:

- Trade receivables reflect the nature of the receivables arising from commercial transactians with purchase -
sale between the Group and an indepsndent purchaser.

_ Other receivables reflect the naturs of the receivables arising from non-cammercial transactians, and naot to
be related to the purchase — sale transactions.

The pravision for doubtful debts represents the estimated loss due to non-payment arising on receivables that
were outstanding at the balance sheet date. Increases and decreases to the provision balance are
recognised as general and administrative expense in the Income statement,

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognized at original cost including purchase price, processing cost and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their location and condition at the time of initial recagnition. After initial
recognition, at the reporting date, inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Met realizable value is estimated based on the selling price of the inventory minus the estimated costs far
completing the products and the estimated costs neaded for thelr eonsumption.

The cast of Inventary is calculated using weighted average method for materials and goods for praduction
and commercial activities and the first-in first-out {FIFO) method for materials sarving construction and real
estate investment activitiss.

Inventory is recorded by perpetual method.

Mathod for valuation of work in process at the end of the year.

_ The value of wark in progress is recorded for each construction project which is incomplets or revenue is
unrecognised, corresponding to the amount of wark in progress at the end of the year.
_The value of work in progress is recorded hased on: actual cost incurred for each unfinished preduct.

Provision for devaluation of inventories made at the end of the year is based on the excess of orginal cost of
inventory over their net realizable value.

Method of calculating inventories' value: FIFO.

Method of accounting for the inventorles: Perpetual method.

Method for determining the valus of unfinished products at the end of the year: The value of work in progress
is recarded for each constructian project which is incomplete or revenue is unrecagnised, corresponding to
the amount af work n progress at the end of the year.

Pravision for devaluation of inventories made at the end of the year is based on the sxcess of original cast of
inventary over their net realizable value.

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at original cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible
fived asset comprises all expenditures of bringing the asset o its working condition and location for its
intended use. The expenditures incurred after initial recognition are capitalised as an additional cost of
tangible fixed assets when they have resulted in an increase In the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of those tangible fixed assets. The expenditures which do not meet the above
eonditions are charged to the expenses |n the year
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4.11

4.12

4.13

When the aseets are sold o disposed, their original costs and the accumulated depreciation which have been
written off and any gain or loss from dispasal of assets are recorded in the incoma statemant.

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets which Is calculated under the straight-line depreciation method with
useful time of the asset s estimated as follows:

Years
BEuilding and structure 05 - 50
Machinery and equipment 03-186
Transpaortation 05-10
Office equipment 05-08

Intangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The historlcal cost of tangible fixed
assets includes all the expensas that the Company incurs to get fixed assets by the time the asset is put into
a state ready for use. Costs incurred after initial recagnition is only recarded as increase in cost of fixed
assets if these costs are sure to increase economic benefits in the future by using these assets, The costs
incurred are ot satisfied conditions are recognized as an expense in the period.

\When assets are sald or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the balance
sheet and any gain or losses resulting from their disposal are recognized in other incame or other expense.

Depreciation of itangible fixed assets which is calculated under the straight-line depreciation method with
useful time of the asset is estimated as follows:

Years
Computer software 03-20
Other intangible fixed assets 03-05

Land use rights with indefinite useful life are not amottized depreciatian.

Investment properties

Investment properties are initially recognised at historical cost.

Invastment properties held for operating lease are recorded at cost, accumulated depraciation and carrying
amount, Avestment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method with expected useful fife as
follows:

Useful time af the asset s estimated as follows!
Years

Buildings, structures 03 - 50

Construction in progress

Gonstruction in progress costs reflect costs directly related, in accordance with the Company's accounting
policies,or purchasing new fixed assets, constructing new or repairing, renavating, expanding or re-aquipping
technical warks such as: costs of canstruction, installation of equipment and other direct costs.

This cost is transfarred to an increase in assets when the project is completed, the overall acceptance has
been completed, and the assets ars handed over and put into a ready-to-use state,
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4.14

4.16

Property lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease is based on the substancs of the arrangement at
inception: whether the performance of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a spacific assel and
whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

A lease s classified as a finance lease if the lessor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

In case the Graup is the lessee

Rent payments under operating |eases are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the |ease term,

In case the Group s the lessor

Assets held under operating leases are recognised as either fixed assets or investmant propetty in the
consolidated balance sheet. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when incurred.

Incoms from operating leases is recognised in the consclidated statement of income on a stralght-line basis
over the lease term.

Prepaid expenses

The expenses incurred but related to aperating resulls of several accounting periods ara recarded as prepaid
expenses and are allocated to the operating results In the following accounting pariods.

The calculation and allocation of long-term prepald expenses lo operating expenses in each accounting
period shauld be based an the nature of those expenses 1o select a reasonable allocation method and criteria.

Types of prepaid expenses include:

Prepaid land expenses include prepaid land rental, including those refated to leased land for which the
Company has recelved certificate of land use right but not eligible for recording as intangible fixed asset In
accordance with the Circular No, 45/2013/TT-BTC dated 25 April 2012 issued by the Ministry of Finance
guiding regulation on management, use and depreciation of fixed assets and other expenses related ta
ensure for the use of leased land. These expenses are recognized in the consolldated statement of income
on a straight-line basis according to the lease term of the contract.

Toals and supplies includs assets which are possessed by the Gompany in an ardinary course of business,
that are nat eligibls for recording as fixed asset under current legal regulations. The historical cost of toals
and supplies are allocated an the straight-line basis fram 08 months ta 24 months,

Bank guarantee fees include fees far implementing cantract, payment guarantees, project warranty
guarantees, etc., with banks, and are allocated on the straight-line basis aver the guarantee period of the
eantract.

Other prepaid expenses are recorded at their historical casts and allocated on the straight-line basis over the
astimated useful life.
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416

4.17

4.18

4.20

Payables

Accounts payabls and accrued payable are recognized for amounts ta be paid in the future, which are related
ta the goads and services received.

The classification of liabilities Is trade payable, accrued expenses and other payables are in accardance with
the fallowing principles:

- Trade payables reflects the payables oceurring from the commaercial transactions with purchase of goads,
services, property and the seller, which is an independent unit with the Group,

- Other payables reflect the payables from non-cammercial payables and not relate to the purchase — sale
transactions.

Accrued sxpenses

Accrued expenses include payables to goods or services received from the suppliers or provided for the
customers during the reporting period, but the payments for such goods or services have not been made and
other payables such as interest expenses, subcontractar construction expenses, ete. which are recorded as
operating expenses of the reporting year.

The recording of accrued expenses as operating expenses during the year shall be carried out under the
matching principle between revenues and expenses during the year. Accrued expsnses are sattled with
actual expenses incurred. The difference between accrued and actual expenses is reverted.

Salary

Salary expensas are detsrmined based on salary, wage and allowances as statsd In agread-upan labor
contracts.

Salary deduction

The Company and employses are required to contribute 17,5% and 8% of the salary an labor contract of
each employes to social insurance fund.

The Company and employees ars required to cantribute 3% and 1.5% of the salary on labor cantract of each
employea to health insurance fund.

The Company is required to contribute 1% and employees are required to contribute 1% of the salary on
labor contract of each employes to unemployment insurance fund.

Trade unions fees deducted on salaries to the cost of 2%.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are total amounts the Company owes to banks. institutions, financial companies and other objects
{excluding borrowings under the form of bond or preferred stock issuance which require the issuer to
repurchase at a certain time in the future).

Borrowings are monltored in detail according to craditar, agresment and borrowed asset.

Principles for recording borrowing costs: Borrowing costs are loan interest and other costs incurred in
diract relation to barrowings of an enterprise; Borrowing casts are recognised as an expense in the year in
which they are incurred, except where the borrowing costs related to borrowings In respect of the construction
or production of uncompleted assets, in which case the borrowing costs incurred during the period of
construction are computed in those assets' value (capitalised) as part of the cost of the assets concerned
when they satisfy conditions stipulated in the WAS No. 16 "Borrowing costs",
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4.21

4.22

4.23

Bond issuance

The Group issues ordinary bonds for long-term borrowing purposeas.

The Company's ordinary bonds are issued at par value, and the carrying value of the bands is reflected oh a
net basis by deducting issuance costs from the face value of the bonds.

Bond issuance costs are gradually allocated over the term of the bond using the straight-line methad and
recognized as financial expenses. Initially, bond issuance costs are recorded as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the bond's principal debt Periodically, these costs are allocated by increasing the principal value

and recording them as financial expenses in accordance with the recognition of interest payable an the bands.

Provision for payables
Pravision for payables is only recognized when meeting all of the following conditions:

- The Group has a present debt obligation {legal abligation or joint abligation) as & result of past events;
- |t is probable that the decrease in ecanomic bensfits may lead to the requirament for debt settlement;
- Diebt obligation can be estimated reliably.

Value recorded as a provision for payables is the most reasonably estimated amaunt required to zettle the
current debt obligation at the end of the accounting year,

Provisions for payables are recorded as operating expenses of the accounting year. In case provision made
for the previous accounting year but not used up exceeds the one made for the currant accounting year, the
difference is recorded as a decrease in operating expenses. The excess of the provision for payahles relating
to construction warranty is recorded as other income in the fiscal year.

Provision for constructon warranty
Provision for construction warranty is made at a rate of 0.5% of revenue generated during the period,

Severance allowance provisions

Under Vietnamese Labor Cods, employees of the Company who have warked regularly for at least 12
months are entitled to severance pay. Tha periad of employmant used to calculate severance pay is the total
actual working time for the Company minus the lime the employes has participated in unemplayment
instirance as required by law and the time the Group has paid severance pay.

The severance allowancs for employees is deducted in advance at the end of each financial year at a rate
afual to half of the average monthly salary for each year of service. The average monthly salary used to
caleulate the severance allowance is based on the average salary of the latest six manths prior to the end of
the financial y=ar, This advance deduction is used for a one-time payment when the employee terminates
their labar contract according to current regulations.

Unearned revenuas

Unearned revenues are prepayments from custamers for one ar many accounting perinds relating to asset
laasing transferred to revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services with the amaount carresponding to
each accounting period.
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4.24

4,25

Owner's equity
Contributed capital of the owner

Owner's equity is stated at actually contributed capital of owners,

Share premlum: Share premium is recorded at the difference between the par value with costs directly
attributable to the issuance of shares and issue price of shares (including the case of re-issuing treasury
shares) and can be a positive premium (if the issue price is higher than par value and costs directly
attributable to the issuance of shares) or negative premium (if the issue price is lower than par value and
costs directly attributabls to the issuance of sharss).

Principles for recognising undistributed profit:

Undistributed after-tax profits can be divided to shareholders based on ownership ratio after approval by the
General Meeting of Shareholders and after appropriation of funds according to the Company's Charter and
legal regulations of Vietnam law.

The distribution of profits to shareholders takes into account non-manetary items in undistributed profits after
tax that may affect cash flow and the ability to pay dividsnds such as interast on revaluation of contributed
assets, interest on revaluation of monetary items, financial instruments and other non-monetary items.

The Company's profit distribution is proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by sharcholders at the
Company's annual general mesting of shareholders.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized to extent that it s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and lhe
revenue can be reliably measures regardless of when payment is being made. Revenus is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, and sales returns. The following
specific recagnition conditions must alse be met when recognizing revenus:

Revenue frorm sale of goods

(a) the Group has transferred the majority of risks and benafits associated with the right to own the preducts

or goods to the buyer;
{b) the Group no longer holds the right to manage the goods as the goods owner, or the right to contral the

goods;

(c) Revenues from sales has been determined with relative certainty,

(d) the Group has gained or will gain economic benefits from the good sale transaction,
(e} It is possible to determine the costs related to the goods sale transactian.

Revenues from rendering services

(a) Revenue can be measured raliably;

(b) Itis possible to ohtain econamic benefits from the service provisian transaction,

(c) The wark valume finished on the date of making the accounting balance sheet can be determined
(d} The costs incurred from the service provision transaction and the gasts of its completion can he
detarmined,

Construction contract revenue

When the results of construction contract performance are reliably estimated:

- For canstruction contracts that stipulate that the cantractor is paid according to planned pragress, revenue
and costs related to the contract are recorded corresponding to the completed wark as determined by the
contractor on the date of preparing the financial statements,
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4.26

Increases and dscreases in canstruction volume, compensation and other revenles are only recordad as
revenus upon the agreement with the customer.

YWhen the results of performance of a construction contract cannot be reliably estimated, then:

+ Revenue is only recorded squivalent to the cantract costs incurred whose repayment is relatively certain.
« Contract costs are only recorded as expenses when incurred.

The difference between the total accumulated revenue of the canstruction contract being recorded and the
accumulated amount recorded on the payment invoice according to the planned progress of the contract is
recorded as a receivable or payable according to the planned pragress of canstruction contracts.

Revenue from infrastructure leasing

In the case of leasing land with attached technical infrastructure in industrial parks where advance rent for
multiple years is received, revenue recagnition is carried out based on the principle of allocating the prepaid
rent apprapriately over the lease term. If the lease term accounts far 90% of the useful life of the asset, the
Group recognizes revenus once for the entire prepaid rent if it meets the following conditions simultaneously.

- When transactions comply with the provisions of the Vietnamese Accounting Standard Mo.06 - Lease, the
lessee does not have the right to terminate the lease contract, and the lessor is not obligated to refund the
prepaid amount received in any case and undsr any circumstances.

- The prepaid amount from lzasing is not less than 90% of the total expected lsase amount according ta the
contract throughout the lease term, and the lessee must pay the entire rent amount within 12 months from the

commencement of leasing the asset;
- The maijority of risks and bensfits associated with the ownership rights of the leased assets have been

transferred to the lessee;
- Ths histarical cost of leasing activities must be reasonably estimated.

Financial income

Revenue from financial activities s recognized when two conditions are simultaneously satisfied: 1. It is
possible ta gain benefits from that transaction; 2. Revenus is determinged with relative certainty.

Revenue from financial activities includes; interest, dividends

Interest is recognized on an accrual basis, determined on the balance of deposit accounts and the actual
interest rate of each period.

Dividend incoms shall be recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is estahlizhed. Dividends
received in shares are only recorded as an increase in the number of sharas, naot recorded as the value of the
shares received/recorded at par value.

When an amount which has besn recorded as an income becames irrecaverable, such irrecoverable or
uncertainly recoverable amount must be accounted as expense incurred in the periad, but not recorded as
income decraase.

Fevenua deductions

Revenue deductions from sales of goods and rendering of services arising In the year Include; Trade
discounts, sales discounts,

Trade discounts incurred in the same period of sale of goods and rendering of services are recorded as a
decrease in revenue in the incurring periad. In case goods and s&rvices are sold in the previaus periods, but
until the next period they are incurred as deductible items, the Company records the decrease in revenus
under the following principles; If it is Incurred prior to the issuance of Financial Statements, it is then recorded
a5 a decrease in revenue on the Financial Statements of the reporting period (the previous year); and if it s
incurred after the issuance of Financial Statements, it is recorded as a decrease in revenue of incurring

period (the next year).
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4.27

4.28

4.29

Cost of goods sold and services rendered

Cost of goods sold are the cost of products, goods, materials sold or services sold in the period; expenses
related to trading the investment properties and other expenses recorded in the cost of goods sold or
recorded a decrease in the cast of goods sold in reporting period. The cost of goods sold is recorded at the
date the transaction incurs or likely to incur in the future regadiess payment has been made or not. The cost
of goods sold and revenus shall be recorded simultaneously on conformity principles. Expenses exceeding
narmal consumption level are recarded immediately to the cost of goods sold on prudent principle,

Financial expanses

Financial expenses include expenses or loss related to the financial investment, borrowing cost,
contribution in joint-venture, associate; Provision far devaluation of financial investment and other financial

BXpenses.

Financial expenses are recorded in details by their content and determined reliably when thers are sufficient
evidences on these axpenses,

Corporate income tax

Deferred Income tax asset and Deferred income tax liability

Deferred income tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences and the carrying forward of
unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Deferred income tax liability is recognized for taxable temporary
differances,

Defarred income tax asset and Deferred Income tax liability are determined based on prevailing corporate
incame tax rate which is estimated to change in the future (if the deferred income tax asset or defarrad
income tax liability are reversed when the new tax rates have baen enacted), tax rates and tax laws enacted
at the end of accounting pariod,

Deferred tax assets are recagnized only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit in future will be
available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Deferrad tax assets are recorded
as a decrease to the extent that it is not sure taxable econamic benefits will be usable.

Current corporate income tax expenses and deferred corporate income tax expenses

Current corporate income tax expenses are determined based on taxable income during the period and
current corporats income tax rate.

Deferred carparate income tax expenses are determined based on daductible temporary differences, the
taxahle temporary differences and corporate income tax rata.
Current corporate incoms tax expenses and deferred corporate income lax expenses are not offset against

each other.
Tax incentives policies

The Group enjoys corporate income tax Incentives for taxable income generated from solar energy projects
of its subsidiaries: Hoa Binh Infrastructure Construction Investment Corporation and Hoa Binh Renewable
Energy & Investment Corporatian. Accordingly, the projects apply a preferential corporate income tax rate of
10% for a period of 15 years, exempt from corparate incoma tax far 4 years and a 50% reduction in the
payable tax for the following 9 years, During the year, the prajects are within the period of corporate income

tax exemption.

Current corporate income tax rate

The Company applies the corporate income tax rate of 20% far the operating activities which has taxable
income for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024,
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4.30 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company (after adjusting for the bohus and walfare fund and allowance for
Board of Management) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the peried.

4.31 Related parties

The parties are related if having the ability to control or significant influence across the decision making of
financial policies and operations. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subjected to common
contrel or common significant influences.

The following individuals! companies are consldered as related parties:

Individuals f Company “  Location Relatlonship

Hoa Binh 479 Joint Stock Company Wietnam Associate company

Onwa Tech Interior Decoration Joint Stock Company Vietnam Associate company

Thanh Ngan Real Estate Company Limited Vietnam Assaciate company

Mr. Le Viet Hai Vietnam Chairman

Mrs. Bui Maoc Mai | Wiatnam Chairman's wife

Mr, Le Viet Hoa Wietnam Chairman's son
Vica Chairman,
cum Deputy

Mr. Le Viet Hisu Vietnam Geaneral Director

Mr. Nguyen Tuong Baa Wietnam Member

Member, cum
General Director
{appointad on 01

Mr. Le Yan Nam Vietnam June 2023)
Mrs. Wu Thi Hoa Vietnam Member
Mrs. Mguyen Thi Luat Vietnam Vice Chairman

Ceputy General
Director resigned

Mr. Mguyen Tan Tho Vietnam on 30 April 2024
Deputy General

Diirector resigned
on 21 Septamber

Mr, Nguyen Hung Cuong Wietnam 2024
Deputy Ganeral
Mr. Nguyen Khanh Hoang Wietnam Directar
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Individuals / Company Location Ralationship
Deputy General

Mr. Dinh Wan Thanh Wigtriam Directar
Deputy General

Director appointed
an 01 May 2024
and resigned on 01
Mr. Le Wan Vien Wietham March 2025
Deputy General
Diirectar appainted
on 01 November

Mr. Nguyen Kinh Luan Vietnam 2024

Deputy General
Director appointed

Mr. Huyrh Tan Quac Wistnam on 01 March 2025

Chief Financial
Officer reappointad

Mrs. Nguyen [Kim Loan Yietnam on 02 August 2024

Chief Accountant
resigned on 30

Mrs. Le Thi Thu Trang Vietnam June 2024

Chief Accountant
appaointed on 01
July 2024 and
resigned on 01

Mrs, Phan Thi ©am Hang Vietnam Novermbear 2024

Chief Accountant
resigned on 30

hrs. Le Thi Phuong Uyen Vietnam June 2024

4.32 Segment Information

A segment is a distinguishable companent of the Group that is engaged in providing an individual or group of
related products or services (business segment), or providing products or services within a particular
scanomic environment (geographical segment). Each segment is subject to risks and returns that are
different from other ones.

Segment information should be prepared in confermity with the accounting policies adopted far preparing and
presenting the financial staterments af the Group in order to help users of financial statements better
understand and make more informed judgements about the Group as a whale.

5. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan, 01, 2024

51  Cash and cash equivalents VHD VND
Cash on hand 1.682.352.209 B53.948.803
Cemand deposits 250.975.004 441 209,059,154 874

Cash Equivalents §.600.000.000 88.817.970.6586

26H.157.396.740 388.531.074.373
33
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5.2

Short - Term trade receivables

Related Parties
Anh Viet Mechanical and Aluminum Glass Corporation
Hoa Binh 479 Joint Stock Company

Others

Mates Group Joint Stock Company

Gamuda Land {(HCMC) Jeint Stock Company

Terra Gold Viet Nam Joint Stock Company

Sunshine Group Joint Stack Company

\finhomes Joint Stock Company

Ecopark Corporation Joint Stock Company

Argua City Company Limited

Phu Loc Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Campany

Thanh Do Investment Development and Construction Joint

Stock Company
Phu Quoe Civil Canstruction Limited Liability Company

Tan A Dai Thanh - Meyland Group Real Estate Jaint Stock

Company
Carava Resort Company Limited
Others

Frovision for doubtful debts

Net hool valua

Dec. 31, 2024
VYND

6.851.546,665.835

79.550.010.815
346,793.401.225
224.463.119.282
2B4.591.967 072
177.164.539.798
240.202.628.075
171.107.561.174
100,489 457 818

68,160.659.037
144.089.515.115

122.428.651 632
77.805.132.171

4,814.578.992.721

Jan. 01, 2024
VND
47.006.295.992

16.6560.284 872
356.011.120

7.215683.962.979

338.023.023.568
310.178.119.282
203.934.434,420
230.476.458.425
376.384.808.738
174.896,338.201
192.3056.130.522

G3.160.859.037
140.214.242.649
150,223.075.840

138.227.360.767
4.753.550.310.832

6.851.546.665.835

7.232.690.258.971

(924,003,298 456)

(1.275.964.012.448)

5.527.543.367 479

5.956.726,246.623

These Trade receivables are being used as collateral for short term loans at the Bank { Mote 5.24).

Provision for doubtful debts as detailed:
Sunshine Group Joint Stack Company

Thanh Do Investment Development and Construction Joint

Stock Company
Saigan Silicon City Joint Stock Company
Others

Dec. 31, 2024
VYHND

74.330.350,90%9

543,707.190
129.030.269.163
720.086.971,184

Jan. 01, 2024
VHD

153.883.544.255

31.036.331.175
118.195.034.428
a72.838.702.583

024.003.298.456

1.,275.964.012.448
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Ve Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh Gity

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Theso notes farm an integral part of the financial statements.

53  Short - Term prepayment to supplies

Related Parties

Jesco Hoa Binh Engineering JSC

Anh Vist Mechanical and Aluminum Glass Corparation
Cinwa Tech Interior Decoration Joint Slock Company

Others

BM Windows Joint Stock Company

Jesco Hoa Binh Engineering JSC

Anh Viet Mechanical and Aluminum Glass Corporation

Luong Binh Constructian Joint Stock Company

My Khang Trading Preduccing Company Limited

ALE & Partners Low Firm

Searefico Engineering and Construction Joint Stock Company
VinTech Investrment Building Jaint Stock Company

Minh Duec Concrate & Construction Company Limited
Greenhause Group Investment And Canstruction Jeint Stock
Company

Hang Ha Investment and Trade Joint Stock Company
Oihers

Provision for short-term prepayments to suppliers

Met hook valus

Provision for short-term prepayments to suppllers as
follows:

Hang Ha Investment and Trade Joint Stock Company
Others

54 Constructlon contract-in-progress receivables
Samuda Land (HCMG) Jaint Stock Company
Ecapatk Corporation Joint Stock Company
Quang Minh Business and Gonstruction Joint Stock Company
Gia Cu Investmant Development Limited
Quoec Loc Phat Joint Stock Campany
Others

Provision for doubtful debts

Met book valus

Dec. 31, 2024
VHND

4.295.714.216

4.205714.316

1.144.847.208.623
2.5497.055.456
13.694.817.215
24,972,074 777

19.281.388.212
100,269 356.877
56.123.049 028
19.141.8B56.051

45,210,910 807
105.324.873.301
748.801.797.788

Jan, 01, 2024
VND
34,288.228.721
21.521.220,215
8.471.294.190
4.295.714.316

1.061.402.783.208
57.845.304 972

50.000.000.000
16.454.825.367
B1.569.356.877
B2.688.478.471

109.679.740.554
B62. 964,957,065

1.149.112.823.935

1.085.691.012.027

{116.934.484.406)

{108.050.910.417}

1.032.178.439.533

977.640.101.610

Dec. 31, 2024
VHD

105,324 873.301
11.608.611.105

Jan. 01, 2024
VND

105.324.873.301
2.726.037.118

116.934.484.408

108.050.810.417

Dec. 31, 2024
YND

208.377 4568.034
95.012 446 228
124,490,373.682
84,464.960.983
208.273.853.777
1.542.596.071.555

Jan. 01, 2024
VD

342 5BT.AT7.616
193.653.920.518
124,490,373 .682
117.341.148.812
99,171.630.796
2.205.505,525 822

2.260.215.162.259

3.082.749.777.246

{456,003 862.786)

(520,621,826 965)

1.804.211.289.473

2.562,127.948.281

These Construction contract-in-progress receivables are being used as collateral for shart term loans at the

Bank (Mote 5.24).
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Yo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These nofes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Pravision for doubtful debts as detailed:
Guang Minh Business and Construction Joint Steck Company
Others

5.5 Loan receivables

Related Partles
Mr. Yo Minh Hoang

Others

New Horizon Real Estate Company Limited

Sai Gon Real Estate Investment Consulting Single Member
Limited
Others

Provision for doubtful debts

Net book value

Cec. 31, 2024
VND

124.480.373 682
331.513.489.104

Jan. 01, 2024
VN

124 490,373 662
3p6.131.455.283

456.003.862.788 520.621.828.965
Dec. 31, 2024 Jan, 01, 2024
VND VND

1.789.890.000
1.789.8580.000

255.400.679.857
36.437.313.3085

18.000.000.000
200.963.366.462

1.788.850.000
1.789.850.000

65.202.254.281
36.437.2313.3835

18.000.000.000
10.764.940, 886

£57.190.569.857

66.992.144.281

(45.617.562.314)

(45.217 562.234)

211.573.007.543

21.774.581.987

Shor-term loans as of 31 December 2024 are made under unsecured loan agreemsnts, with a loan term not
exceeding 12 months, and interest rates ranging from 8% to 11% per annum.

Provision for Short-term loan receivables as detalled
Mew Horizon Real Estate Company Limited
Others

Dec. 31, 2024
VND

38.437.313.395
9.180.248.919

Jan. 01, 2024
VHD

36.437.313.396
8.780.248.899

45.617.562.314

45.217.562.294
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUFR JOINT STOCK COMPANY
245 Vs Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These notas form an integral part of the financial statements.

5.8

Inventories Dec. 31, 2024
Orlginal cost Provision
VHND VND

691.195.478.041
18,854,722 9549
1.350,508.388.843
B0G.331.368.821
351.263 423 559

Raw materials

Tools & supplies

Works in progress
- Real osfate {1}
instalfation

- Development of

industrial zones 121.760.535.735

- Othars 61.123.061.828
Finished goods 26.162.572.078
Goods 310,008,554 818

Goods on consignment 174.419.843

(34.586.144)
(16.850,447.719)

(15.970.716.277)

(879.731.442)
(21.966.775.160)
(723.113.389)

Jan. 01, 2024

Original cost
VD

559.414.866.045
17.686.284.062

1.632.770,957.882

1,109.676.226. 771
399.446.058.847

91.712.858.171
31.836.714.003
24,935 626.598
9B.551,292 528

174.419.843

Provision
VHD

(34.586.144)
(32.714.898.589)

(32.176.969.586)

(535.929.003)
(21.966.775,160)
(723.112.389)

2.396.702.177.680

(39.574.922,412)

2.332.547.446 966

(65.439.373.282)

(i} Detailed expanses related to the unfinished real estate business operation:

Residence residential project in Long Thoi commune, Nha Be

district, Ho Chi Minh City

Ascent Lakeside Tower commercial and residential skycraper
project on Mguyen Van Linh Street, Tan Thuan Tay ward,

District 7, Ha Chi Minh City

Ascent Plaza high-rise residential and commercial project at 375-
377 No Trang Long, Ward 13, Binh Thanh District, Ho Chi Minh

City
Others

Dec. 31, 2024
VND

156.201.415.402

11,611.796.378

629 454 804,281
9.0583.252.760

Jan. 01, 2024
VYND

153,362 .371.546

358.274.243.022

487.570.583.0838
100.471.028.277

806.331.368.821

1.109.676.226.781

43



HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ha Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 Decamber 2024

These noles form an integral part of the financial statoments.

.10 Long-term assets In

511

progress Dac. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Original cost Provision Original cost Provision
VND VND VND VND
Works In progress
Hoa Binh Innovation
Center (i) 37.455.839.317 - 37.455.838.017
Lang Co Resort Villa
Project 5.583.015.779 - 5.583.015.778 -
Equipment Installation 235869180 2.217.404 000

Other 4.886.304.000 - 1.269,673.518

48.161.028.276 - 46.525.812.614 -

(i) Hoa Binh Innovation Center project was granted an Investment Registration Certificate for the first time on
3 February 2016, with the most recent adjustment issued on 19 August 2022 by the Ho Chi Minh City Hi-Tech
Park Project Management Board. The project aims to establish a high-tech business incubator and enterprise
incubatar; suppart ingubating and post-incubating enterprise with working facilities, machinery and equipment
far research and development, pilot production and technology transfer establish a center far research and
development of new materials; information technology, biotechnalogy — medical technalogy. The project [s
implemented on a land area of 24,512.6 m2, with a total investment capital of YND 200 billion, equivalent o
USD 39,130,435, The project's operating period |s 50 years from the date of issuance of the Investment
Registration Certificate. Currently, the project has completed |and lease procedures and |land lease paymants
within the High-Tech Park and has invested in the incubation zone component.

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Prepaid expenses VND VND
Shaori-term prepaid expenses 15.675.228.907 15.982.341.307
Rental of office £93.094 887 -

Tools and supplies used
Bank guarantee fees
Software

Others

Long-term prepaid expenses
Tools and supplies used
Prepaid land rental fees (%)
Brokerage excpenses

Bank guarantee fees
Insurance excpenses
Renowvation and Repair Fees
Cithers

7.934.110.251
2.261.668.704
4, B65.454.065
185.431.288.136
13.007 056 552
55.178.679.019
79.690.044.529
4.379.382.514
2.798.580.172
6.973.460.286
23,403.085.524

2.681.447.318

12.100.693.989
253,023.075.149
21.403.748.823
84.543.589.867
84. 780,877 508
8.662.770.079

42.632,000.874

201.106.517.043

269.005.416.456

(*y Including: This is the rent far a plot of land with an area of 24,512 m2 in High-Tech Park, Lang Thanh My

Ward. District @, Ha Chi Minh City with a lease term of 50 years {until 3 February 2086) to implement the Hoa
Binh Innovation Center project is YMD 51,477,360,182 (Note 5.10).
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HOA BINH COMSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vio Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These notes form an integral part of the financial statemens.
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5.14

6.15

516

Finance lease fixed assets

The Group's finance lease fixed assets are the solar power system under financial lease from Wietcombank
Financial Leasing Co., Ltd - Ho Chi Minh City branch. As at 31 December 2024, the historical cost of the

finance lease fixed asset s WND 7,542,000,00
depreciation for the peried is VND 754,200,000,

Intangible fixed assets

Land use rights

lterms VND

Computer
software
VHD

Others
VMD

6, accumulated depreciation iz VND 3,205,350,000,

Tatal
VMND

Historlcal cost
Opening halance 42.297.185.783
Other danreasos

Closing balance 42297185783

37.206.640.728
{701.100.000)
36,595.540.728

1.216.005.358

1.216.005.358

80.809.831.869
(701,100.000)
£0.108.731.869

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance -
Charge for the year -
Ofher increases -

Clasing balance

25.569.102.808
3.096.633.675
{138 110.116)

28.457 626347

1.216.005.358

1.216.005.358

26.775.108.256

3.086.633.615
{198.110.118)

29.673.631.755

Met book value

As at baginning of the
year 42 297,185,783

As at the end of the

yaar 42.297.1856.783

11, 737.537.830

8.137.914.331

54.034,723.613

50.425.100.114

The carrying amount of intangible fixed assets pledged as eollaterals for borrowings as of 31 Decamber 2024
is WND 39 790,252,840 (it is VND 39,790,252,840 as of 31 December 2023),

The historical cost of fully amortized intangible fixed assets but still in use as of 31 December 2024 is VND
21,229,112,966 (it is VMD 20,142,757,086 as of 31 Dacember 2023},

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's Investment properties cansist of warehauses for rent in industrial zones, As at 31 December
2024, the investment properties have a histarical cost of YMD 167,838,199,232, accumulated depreciation of
VND 3,908 920917, depreciation for the period of VND 847,884,260. These investment properties are
currently being used as collateral for bonds issued by the Group (Mots 5.24).

The fair value of investment properties has not been formally assessed and determined as of 31 December
2024, However, hased on the rental situation and market price of these assets, the Board of General
Directors believes that the fair valus of the investment properties exceeds lhe carrying amount at the end of
the accounting period.

Goodwill

Opening balance

Increasing in the year
Amordisation for the prior yoar
Amartisalion for the year

Closing balance

Dec. 31, 2024
VND

61.896.518.318
48.231.670.552

1.470.302 347
12.254.455.420

Jan. 01, 2024
VHD

61.896.518.318
41.245 475 468

5.0865.195.084
13.664.847.766
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ha Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 Decamber 2024

These notes form an infegral part of the financial stataments.

519 Capitaland - Hien Duc Joint Stock Company

6.20

Quoc Loc Phat Joint Stock Company
Ecapark Corporation Joint Stack Company
Phu Loc Real Estate Investment Joint Stack Company

Gia Lam Urban Development and Investment Company Limited

Octava Maovena Property Company Limited
Capltaland - Hien Duc Joint Stack Company

Gamuda Land (HCME) Joint Stock Company
H9EC Invastmant Company
Sunshine E&C Construction Joint Stock Company

Dia Lat Valley Real Estate Company Limited
My Way Ha Long Investment and Hotel Joint Stock Gompany
Mam Dao Construction Company Limited
Thaihaldings Joint Stock Company

Terra Gold Vietnam Joint Stock Company

Others

Taxes and payables to the State Budget

Receivables
Value added tax
Import — VAT

Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax
payment for amount
received in advance
from real estate
transfer activities

Persanal income tax

Fees, charges and
other payahles

Receivahble in

Dec. 31, 2024
VMD

12.668.550.721
84.002.893.647
10,377.163,951
10.377,163.951

85.401,833.452
106.568.655,669
124.129,503.014
79.678.500.978
95.306.661.117
278.815.206.275
105.169.357.890
1.277 745,526,060

Jan. 01, 2024
VMDD

59.770.896.318
112.183.831.525
170.155.043 842
50.075.588.504
71.000.000.000
79,8592 385,448
105,033.506 837
74167.370.054
109.568.855 360
114.129.503.014
79.678.500.976
129.950.053.274
7.596.204.681
29.654.857.880
1.586.474.270.601

2.273.229.916.723

2.779.311.818.649

Amount

the year collected/offset
Jan. 04, 2024 during the year Dec, 31, 2024
VD VHD WND VD
19.761.378 = 19.751.378
12.648.012 = = 12.649.012
4 374,505,975 £ = 4.374.505.975
280.280.573 - 280,280,573
27.621.106 12.830.740 2 4(.451.646
1.414.039 - 1.414.038
4.435.941.510 303,111.213 - 4.739.052.822
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Yo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These notes form an integral part of the financial staternents.

Jan, 01, 2024 Payable amount Paid amount Dec, 31, 2024
VND VND YND VND

Payables
Walue added tax 197.002.161.251 157.508.776.6872 134 860 563,269 220,550.374.654
Corporate income tax 6,300,522 320 13.745,134.129 7.010.672.540 13.034.083,90%
Persanal incame tax 3.907.981.874 14.646,230.822 11.057.900.5535 7.486.312.141
Environimental tax and
others taxes 27877324 3.000,000 3.000.000 27677.324
Fees, charges and
other payables 10,436,977 806 3.646.993 308 10.708.229.235 3.377.741.965

218.575.320,665 185.550.134.931 163.638.365.603

244.487.089.993

Valua-added tax

The company pays value added tax by the deduction method, The value added tax rale for the construction

goods and services business seclor is 8%, and for the remaining sectors itis 10%.

The Group's tax settlements are subject to examination by the tax authoritiss. Because the application of tax
laws and regulations an many types of transactions is susceptible to varying interpretations, amounts reparted
in the Consolidated financial staternents could be changed at a later date upon final determination by the tax

autharities,
Dec. 31, 2024
5.21 Short - term accrued expenses YND
Interest expenses 15.877.538.206
Expenses for sub-contractors 767.517.865.608
Real Estate Development and Industrial Park B9.422.053.238
Others 45.784,6231.107

Jan. 01, 2024
WND

26.748.403.168
774.723.250.458
79.570.342.951
35,007.828.838

4918.602.188.308

916.049.825.475

In which: Related Partles

Mr. Le \iet Hoa -
Jesco Hoa Binh Engineering JSG -
Anh Viet Mechanical and Aluminum Glass Corporation -
Onwa Tech Interior Decoration Jaint Stock Company 4 647.789.975

73.972.603
61.612.175.180
7.528.078.464
3728650185

4.647.789.976

73.242.876.442




HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh Gity

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

6.22

5.23

Short - term unearned revenue

Revenue received in advance for praperty rental

COther payables

Short-tarm

Depasits from homebuyers

Assets surplus awaiting resolution

Trade union fee

Sacial insurance

Payable to employees for projects cost
Severance pay, employee benefit payment
Collection on behalf of maintenance fees
Transfer of shares of Tien Phat Sanyo Homes
Shart-term depaosits, collataral received
Liguidation penalty interest

Payable dividends, profit

Scholarship fund

Others

Long-term
Long-term deposits, collateral received
Others

In which: unpaid overdue payables
Deposits from homebuyers
Soclal insurance

Other short-term payablas to related parties
Mrs. Bul Ngog Mai
Mr. Vo Minh Hoang

Dec. 31, 2024
VND

35.2168.877.725

Jan. 01, 2024
VND

44,800.350.678

35.216.877.725

44.800.290.678

Dec., 31, 2024
VND

210,471.088.812
10.412.734.806
47.713.804.918
8600, 144,124
18.842.750 243

8,200.856.8H
344,486,170
1.933.500.000
135.382,695.904

Jan. 01, 2024
VND

174,343 223,225
30.564.022
7.543.202.639
4{.583.465.778
36.673.530.214
13.895, 3268130
18.702.447 BE2
18.000.000.000
86.654.614.138
21,341 .528.062
411.280.195
2.000.000,000
13.843.058.966

442.8902.071.960

444.032.242.251

27.691.690. 306
2.8231.843.152

37.BBR.757.517

30.523.633.458

37.658.757.517

210.471.089.812
47.311.550.260

174.343.223.225
35.333.669.317

257.782.640.072

209.676.892.542

152.082.000

1.417.811.700

152.082.000

1.417.911.700
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These notes form an infegral part of the financial statements,

5.24

5.24.5

5.25

Borrowings {Cont'd)

The loans, financial leasa liabilities, and bond abligations are repaid accarding to the agreed schedules with

the respective lenders as fallows:

Within the first year
In the second year
From the third year to the fifth year

Amaunt due for settlement within 12 months

Amount due for settiement after 12 months

Borrowings from

Dec, 31, 2024
VHD

3,318.208.058.953

166.395.666.668
375.021.485.897

Jan, 01, 2024
WHND

3,995.332.055.643
345 212,525,700
377.463.392,208

4.350.729.211.618

4.718,008.377.589

3.B818.308,058 053

3,995.332.055.693

532.421.152 665

722.676.321.006

related parties Dac, 31, 2024 Jan. 31, 2024
Original Interest Original Interest
VND YHND VND VND
Mr, Le Viet Ha 15.400.000,000 308.000.000 -
Mr. Le Viet Hoa 12.087.357.561 1.361.540,247 12.000,000.000 73972603
27.487.357.561 1.669.549.347 12.000.000.000 73.972.603
Cec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
VND VHD

Provision for payables

Short-term
Provision for construction warranty

Long-term
Provisian for canstruction warranty

Fravision for severance pay

72.821.813.432

49.119.084 480

72.821.813.432

48.118.084.490

148.059.767.442
19.116.445.596

182.113.365.171
10,257,285 834

187.176.213.038

201.370.651.005
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HOA BIMH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STQCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These rioles form an integral part of the financial statements.

5.26 Owners' equity (Cont'd)

Detalls of
5.26.2 owners' Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
shareholding % of shareholding VND 9% of shareholding VND
Mr, Le Viat Hai 13,53% 489, B76.590.000 17, 14% AE0.876.050.000
Hyundai Elevator
Co, Lk 6,64% 230.607.500.000 10,24% Z80.607.500.000
Others 79,83% 2.771848210.000 72.62% 1.990.648.210.000
100,00% 3.472.432.700.000 100,00% 2.741.332.700.000

On 8 August 2024, the Company registered to change the Certificate of Business Registration according o
the changed charter capital,

Year 2024 Year 2023

5.26.3 Capital transactions with owners and distribution VND VND

of dividends, profits

Owners' equity

At the beginning of the voar 2.741.332.700.000 2.741.332.700.000

Capital increase during the year (*) 730.800,000.000 -

Capital decraase during ihe year 5 -

At ine end of the year 3.472.132.700.000 2.741.332.700.000

() Capital increase results during the year.

Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 02/2024/NQ - PHCBH HBC dated 25 April
2024 appraved the plan for the private stock [ssuance far debt swap.

On 27 June 2024, the State Securities Commission issued official etter No. 4021/UBCK- GLCB about the
receipt of the registration dossier far the private stock issuance far debt swap as follows:

- Name of the |ssued Shares: Shares of Hoa Binh Canstruction Group Joint Stock Campany.
- Type of Shares: Common shares
_ Number of Shares to be lssued; 73,080,000 shares

- Debt-to-Equity Swap Ratio: VMD 10,000 per share (i.e., VND 10,000 of debt will be swapped for 1 newly
izsiyed common shars)

- Total Value to be Swapped: ¥MD 730,800,000,000

- Issuance Target: Creditors listed in the Resolution of the Board of Directors No. 16/2024/NQ - HBQT, HBC
dated 27 June 2024,

_ Transfer Restrictions: 1 year from the end of the issuance year, except In cases of transfer under court
judgrents, arbitration decisians, or inheritance actording Lo legal regulations.

- End Date of the Issuance: 28 June 2024

On 18 July 2024, the Ha Chi Minh City Stock Exchange announced the change in securities trading
registration according to Decision Mo. 421/OD-SGDHCM dated 15 July 2024, with details regarding the
lasuance aof shares far debt-to-equity swaps.
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HOA BIMH CONSTRUCTION GROLUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal yoar ended 371 Decembor 2024

These notes form an intogral part of the financial sfatements.

5.26.4 Dividends
Dividends declared after the balance sheet date

5.26.5 Shares
Number of sharas registered to be issued
Number of shares sold out to the public
Ordinary share
Mumber of existing shares in issue
Ordinary share
Par value, WND/share.

5.26.6 Funds of tha Group
Investrment and develapment fund

* Purpose of appropriating and using funds of the (3roup

Year 2024 Year 2023
VHD VND

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
YND VND
347.213.270 274,.133.270
347.213.270 274.133.270
347.213.270 274.133.270
347213270 274.133.270
347.213.270 274.133.270
10,000 10.000

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
VMD VHND

06.708.681.725

05.836.842.472

96.709.591.725

95.836.842.472

Investmant and development fund is established from the profit after tax of the enterprise and ussed for
axpanding the operating scale or investing further in the enterprise of the Group.

§.27 Off balance sheet items

Foreign currencias
LsD

Dec. 31, 2024
VYND

4.4085 67

Jan. 01, 2024
WND

3.783,58

B. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS IN THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

6.1 Revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services

6.1.1 Revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services

Revenue from construction contracts (i)
Revenue from real estate transfers
Revenue from sales of goods, finished products

Revenue from brokerage, consulting, management and

pperation services

Revenue fram real estate leasing {land, infrastructure,
workshops, offices, residentail properties)

Ravanue from canstruction eonsulting services
Revenue from solar enargy projects
Others

Year 2024
VYMND

5.179.018.880.600
222.087.086.567
64297 .066.423

25.570.048.027

340.339.670.827
10.631.072.574
17.763.082.772
563,704.849.981

Year 2023
VMDD

7.158.312.366.204

63.550.769.711

27.733.047.312

256 458.6884.258
12.242:200.408
17.849.883.911

5.067.262.235

i,425.200,748.471

7.542.214.414.04
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

6.1.3

6.2

{i} Revenue from construction contracts

Revenue from construction contracts is recognized during the
year, inwhich:

- Revenue recognised during the year of the on-geing
construction contracts at the end of year

- Revenue recognised during the year of the completed
sonstruction contracts

Cumulative revenue recognised up to end of year of the an-
going construction contracts

Revenue deductlons
Trade discounts
Sales return

Sales allowances

Met revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services
Net revenue from construction contracts
Net revenue from real estate transfers

Met revenue from sales of goods, finished products
Met revenue from brokerage, consulting, managsment and
operation services

Met ravenue from real estate leasing {land, infrastructure,
workshops, offices, residentall properties)

Met revenue from construction consulting services
Net revenue from solar energy projacts
Others

Cost of goods sold

Caost of from construction contracts

Cost of fram real estate transfers

Cost of from sales of goods, finished products

Cost of from brokerage, consulting, management and
oparation services

Cost of from real sstate leasing {land, infrastructure,
workshops, offices, residentail properties)

Casl of fram construction consulting services
Cost of fram solar energy projects

Cost of goods sold other

Provision for inventory devaluation

5,179,918.890.600

2.3B7.588 354.844

2.812.230.535.751

15.696,743.073.535

Year 2024
VHD

4 317.740.271
38.086.048

7.158.312.366.204

5,959 114,658 774

1.189.197.707.430

11.940.571.699.226

Year 2023
VND

5.099.055.138

18.774.056

4.355.826.317

5.117.833.195

Year 2024
VYHD

5.179.318.850.600
222 .967.086.567
59,941.240.1086

26.578.948.527

340.339.670.627
10.631.072.574
17.763.062.772
563.704.5459,981

Year 2023
VND

7.158.312.366.204

5B.432,936 516

27.733.047.312

256,458.884.259
12,242.200.409
17.849.883 911
§.067.262.235

6.420.844.922.154

7.537.096.580.846

Year 2024
WND

4.954.067.378.668
187.779.208 532
39.865.371.953

13.667.370.335

304.873.378.791
5.531.613.244
7 620,855 350
565.058.974.079
(15.864.450.870)

Year 2023
VND

5,959 137,744 943

39.128.490.540

11.296,764.083

262.582.030.603
9.962.950.356
8.461 198008
(484 443 587}

6.063.289.790.282

7.293.009.825.276
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Va Thi Sau, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal vear ended 31 Decemnber 2024

These notas form an integral part of the financial statemoenis.

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

B.6.1

Financial income

Interest income fram deposits, loans
Profit from investment transfer

Late payment interest

Exchangs rale difference

Others

Financlal expenses

Interest expensa

Bord issuance expenses

Pravision/ (reversal) for impairment loss from investment
Payment discount

Fareign exchange losses

Cthers

Gains/losses in associates, jolnt-ventures

Floa Binh 472 Joint Stock Company

Jesco Hoa Binh Engineering J5C

Anh Viet Mechanical and Aluminum Glass Corporation
Onwa Tech Interior Decaration Jaint Stock Company
Thanh Ngan Real Estate Company Limited

Selling expenses and General and adminlstration expenses

Selling expenses

Salaries

Material and packaging costs
Office supplies expenses
Depreciation

Brokerage expenses

Services bought fram outsiders
Other sundry expenses by cash

Yaar 2024
vHD

B.995.020.905
168.407.078.971
55.696,502 827
255.042 076
300.503.226

Year 2023
WVND

10.595.394.624
18.639.323.200
44 864, 781.018
4.042.017
71.153.036

244.659.048.005

74,274.603.885

Year 2024
VHND

404.156.249.744
2.317.333.526
(3.972.771.121)
1.435,423 666

Year 2023
VD

§57.095.371.760

1.596.087.102

337.823.436 182.000.277
3.389.813.156 583 .B82.745
407.663.872.217 559 457.321.904
Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VHD

(5.229.305.545)
{15.702.595,503)
1.970.503.826
{139.383.640)
{7.347.048.547)

(2.927.559.411)
(19.808.612,402)
(14.543.552.016)

(400.021.061)
(196.472.704)

(26.447.830,408)

{37.876.217.583)

Year 2024
WHD

13.218.193.035

2.650672.01

9.077.264.648
11.240.077.118

Year 2023
YND

15,492, 780.346
87, 1689364
1.053.360.588
2,524 057 650
5.418,060
14.506.048.233
5.066.561.160

36.187.206.813

38.746.4156.801
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal vear ended 31 Decarnber 2024

These notas form an integral parl of the financisl statements.

6.6.2 General and administration expenses

6.7

E.8

Salaries

Material and packaging costs
Office supplies expanses
Depreciatian

Taxes, fees and charge
Provision for doubtful debts
Services bought from outsiders
Other sundry expensas by cash
Goodwill

Other Income

Liguidation, disposal of fixed assels

Gain from Liquidation, disposal of Toals and supplies

Debt Sales Revenus

Project warranly provision refund

Revenue from assignment of business rights to the staging area
Depasit recelvad due to customer cancellation of conlract
Others

Other expanses

Late interest expanses

Social insurance and tax payments

Fines

Costs associated with contract termination
Others

Year 2024
VND

144.504.137.503

3.831,503.666
681.932.693

(540,393.997.878)
82.326,366.352
36.367.602.147
5.791.380.208

Year 2023
VND

190.877.587.786
382.386.829
1.702.433.671
5,076.145.478
(174.497.079)
417.434.000.580
109.812.488.732
25.546,988.395
6.986.185.080

(266.891.075.289)

757.700.729.472

Year 2024
VND

590.699.014.432
191.605.833
13.628.974.465
13.996.407.324
66,122,675
944,906 454
16.313,145.086

Year 2023
YND

12,322 882.551

29.148.118.650

11.556.232.062

635.840.175.276

53.027.033.303

Year 2024
VND

2.421.360.034
7.187.761.580

9.268.345.478
6.417.527.175

Year 2023
VND

12.808.304 338
26.092.499.211

18.523.788.675

25.2594.997.286

57.424.590.224
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal yaar ended 31 December 2024

Theso notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

6.9

B8.9.1

6.9.2

Origin
aling
year

2022
2023

Corporate income tax

Year 2024 Year 2023
Corporate income tax expenses . VND VMD
Current Corparate income tax expenses at parent company = &
Current Corparate income tax expenses at at Subsidiaries
- Hoa Binh Paint Co., Lid 1.762.312.935 1.669.845.5591
- Hoa Binh Infrastructure Construction Investment Corporation 11.882.821.194 5.875.585.930
- Hoa Yen Investment and Development Joint Stock Company - -

13.745.134.129 7.545.441.521

The carparate incame tax ("CIT") rate applicable to the Gompany is 2% of taxable profits,

The tax reports of the companies in the Group will be subject to inspection by the tax autharities. Because the
application of tax laws and regulations on many types of transactions is susceptible to varying interpretations,
amounts reported in the Consolidated financial staternents could be changed at a later date upan final
determination by the tax authorities,

Uncertalnty temporary differances and tax losses to be utilized in the future

Unused tax losses

The Group is allowed to carry forward tax |psses lo subsequent years to offset against taxable income within 5
yaears from the year in which the losses were incurred. As at 31 December 2024, the Group has accumulated
tax losses totaling WYND 2,201,214,826,039 {compared to VND 3,008,100,747,131 as at 31 December 2023)
which can be used to offset against taxable income generated in the following years. Specifically:

Can be utilized up Utilized up to 31 Unutilized at 31 Deec.
to Tax |oas amount Dec. 2024 Forfeited 2024
WMD VD WD WND
2027 2.205.301 827.772 BOB.BES. 021.062 - 1.488.415.906.680
2028 712.796.919.358 - - 712.758.919.369
Total 3.008.100.747.131 B0OG.8856.821.082 . 2.201.214.826.039

The Board of General Directors evaluates the Group's ability to generate sufficient taxable profits in the future
to utilize these unused tax [nsses as uncertain . Therefore, the Group does not recognize deferred tax assets
and deferred corporate income tax expense in these financial stataments related to these tax losses.
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HOA BINH CONSTRUCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Vo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh Clty

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 Decembar 2024

Thase noles form an intagral part of the financial statements.

6.0.3

Crigin
ating
year

2021
2022
2023

6.10

6.11

The excess Interest expense in relation to the prescribed

At the same time, the Group is allowed to carry forward excess interest expenses that have not been
deducted for current year corporate income tax calculation to subsequent years after determining the total
deductible interest expanses of the following years {according to Decree Mo, Decision 132/2020/ND-CP dated
& November 2020 of the Government). The period for carrying forward Interest expenses to subsequent years
is calculated continuously and shall not exceed 5 years from the year in which the intarest expenses were
incurred. As at 31 December 2024, the Company has unutilized interest expenses tataling WND
1140,178,795,808 (as at 31 December 2023, it was yND 1,171,627.607,889), which can be used to offsel
against the total interest expenses of the subseguent years. Specifically:
Deductible interast
EXpENSES are no
longer cartied

Non-deductible
interest expense
available to be

Mon-deductible
interest expensas

Can be used as Man-tleductible  carried forward to farward to the
deductibls interest  interest expenses  following year by 31 following year until  carried forward as at
expanse up fo incurred Dec. 2024 31 Dec. 2024 31 Dec. 2024
YD WD YD VD
2026 50.495,638.851 31.448.847.981 20.046.790.870
2027 483.219.186.720 - - 483.219.186,720
2028 G27.912.782.318 4 - 827.912.782.218
Total 1.171.627.607.889 . 31.448.847.981 1.140.178.759.808

The Board of General Directors evaluates the uncertaity regarding the potential utilization of these unclaimed
interest expense within the remaining allowable period. Therefore, the Group does not recognize deferred tax
assets and deferred corporate income tax expenses in these financial statements related to these unclaimed

inferest expenses.

Defarred income tax assets

Corporate income tax rate used to determine deferred income
tax assets

Deferred income tax assets related to deductible temporary
differences

Deferred corporate income tax llabilities

Corporate income tax rate used to determine deferred income
tax liakilitizs

Deferred income tax liabilities arising from deductible
temporary differences

Dec. 31, 2024
VND

20%

46,142.434.714

Jan. 01, 2024
VND

. 20%

48.869.271.041

46.142.434.714

48.669.271.041

Dec. 31, 2024
VND

20%

523.055.212 412

Jan, 01, 2024
YND

20%

491 B05.757 177

523.065.312.412

491.506.757.177
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HOA BINH CONSTRUGCTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
235 Yo Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

These noles form an integral part of the financial statements.

B.12

6.13

7.1

Tid

7.4

Deferred corporate income tax expense

- Deferred corporate income tax expense arising from taxable
temparary differences

. Deferred incame tax expense resufting from reversal of
deferred income tax assal

- Deferred €T income arising fram deductible temporary
differences :

Earnings per share
Accounting profit after corporate income tax
Increase or decrease of accounting profit

- Adjuystment o increase

- Adjusimant to decrease
Profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders
Average ordinary shares outstanding during the year
Earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share {*)

Dec. 31, 2024
VND

38.700.213.277

4.000.459.277

{10.056.766.272)

Jan. 01, 2024
VYND

21.687.684 BET

{3.712.386,266)

32.643.906.282

27.975.288.521

Year 2024
VHD

8959.726.100.623

959,786.100.622

Year 2023
VMND

(1.110.747.492.552)

(1.110.747.492.552)

310.673.270 274,133,270
3.089 (4.052)
3.089 (4.052)

{*} There Is no impact of the reduction of commin stock on 31 Demcember 2024,

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year 2024
VD

Non-monetary transactions that affect the cash flow staternent In the future

- Conversion of debt into owner's equity

Borrowing amount in the year

- Proceeds from the borrowing under normal agresment

Payment for principal debts
- Payment for principal debts under normal agreement

- Payment for principal debts of ordinary hand

730.800.000,000

2.625.775,420.452

2,683,904 487 620
180,000.000.000

Year 2023
VMD

3.205.260.763,168

4.449.057 1526812
260.000.000,000

(1=}



HOA BINH CONSTRUGTION GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
245 Va Thi Sau, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Those nates form an infegraf part of the financial statements.

8.1.2

OTHER INFORMATION
Contingent liabilities, commitments

Contingent liahilities

As of 31 December 2024, the Group has overdue debts and disputes and litigation related to the perfarmance
of econamic contracts in which the Group is the plaintiff or defendant at the Court and Arbitration, which may
give rize to late payment interest, penalties, and related expenses far the Group. These amounts are only
recorded when they are reliably determined and there is a cartain reduction in econamic benefits for the
Group through negotiation or final judgment of the Court and Arbitration,

Commitments

Cperating leased assets

The Group is the lesses and |eased office under aperating lease contracts, At the end of the reporting year,
future minimum rental payments under operating lease contracts are prasented as follows:

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan, 01, 2024
VND VND

Under 1 year 138.052.540.267 31.300.274.063
From 1 year to 3 years 862.113.704.004 123.058,133.070
Ower 5 ysars 580.497.326.603 1.229,952.446.111

Additlanally, the Company and its subsidiaries have land lease caftracts with the State for the purpose of
serving their preduction and business activities, According to these contracts, the Company and its
subsldiaries must pay land rent annually until the contract expires or make a lump-sum payment for the entire
lease term as stipulated by current regulations of the Stata.
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For the fiscal year ended 31 Decamber 2024

These notes form an integral part of the financial statemenis.

8.2

8.2.1

Operating assets for leasing

The Group is the lessor under aperating lease contracts. At the end of the reparting year, fullire minium lease
incoma under operating lease contracts are presented as follows:

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024

VND YND

Lnder 1 year 116.956.083.864 11.144.720.528
From 1 year to 5 years 116.946.795.781 205,792 206,892
Over 5 years 21.124.580.428 41.623.235.176

The company has a contract to |ease assels to Matec Group Joint Stock Company, including lifting
gruipment, concrete pumps, electromechanical machinery, and ather assets. The primary purpose is for
Matec ta sublease these assets to HBC's beneficiaries to control asset turnover, damage, loss, and utilization
efficiency. The lease term and asset management are automatically renswed at the end of each year. Rental
prices and sublease terms are adjusted periadically as agreed by both parties. Matec will prioritize subleasing
ta designated beneficiaries. If these beneficiaries do not fully utilize the assets, Matec has the right to lease
them to other partners for effective utilization,

Transactions and Closing balance with related parties

Transactions and Closing balance of key management members and individuals related to key
management members

Transactlons and Closing balance of key management members and Individuals related to hkey
management members

The Group did not have any other transactions and provision services with key management members and
individuals related to key managsment members.

Income of key management

Year 2024 Year 2023
Name Position VD VND
M. Le Viet Hai Chairman 1.645.713.552 1.997.202.660
Mr. David Martin
Ruiz Member (resigned an 27 June 2023) - BT2.870.474
\fice Chairman, cum Depuly General
Mr. Le Viet Hieu Director 1,779.848.200 1.921.008, 966
Member, cum General Director
Mr. Le Man Nam {appointed on 01 June 2023) 1,845.713.532 1.071.576.497
Mr. Mguyen Tan Deputy General Director resigned on
Tho 30 April 2024 413.681.222 1.331.307.205
Mr, Nguyen Hung  Depuly General Directar resigned an
Cuong 71 September 2024 T747.758.860 1,331,207 203
Mr. Nguyen Khanh  Deputy General
Haang Diractor 1.013.098,363 518,108.893
Deputy General
M. Dinh Yan Thanh Rirsclor B27.325 344 B47. 367 367
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Thase nates form an infegral part of the financial stalements.

8.2.2

Mr. Le Van Vien

Mr. Mguyen Kinh
Luan

idr. Truong Quang

Mhat

Mr. Duong Dinh
Thanh

Mrs. Nguyen Thi
Kim Loan

firs. Le Thi Thu
Trang

Transactions and Closing balance with other related parties

Transactions with other ralated parties

Other related partie:

Deputy General Director appointed on

01 May 2024 and resigned on 01

March 2023

Deputy General Director appointed on
01 November 2024

Deputy General Dirsctor resigned on

18 May 2023

Depuly Ganeral Director resigned on

23 March 2023

Chief Financial Officer appointed on 02

August 2024

Chief Accountant appointed on 01

November 2024

Hoa Binh 479 Joint Stock Company

Onwa Tech Interior Decoration Joint

Stock Company

Transactions

Fevenus

Disposal scrap

Revenus

Others revenueg

Closing balance with other related parties

Other related parties

Shart - Term trade receivables

Hoa Binh 479 Joint Stock Company

Short - Term prepaymant to supplies

Onwa Tech Interior Decoration Joint

Stock Company

Loan receivables
Mr. Yo Minh Hoang

Transactions

Canstruction
Services

Advance

Loan

674.234.738

542.048.892

BB5.371.108

109.507.021

802.093.248

a06.760.740

85.424.752

10.384.701.812

11.195.026.210

Year 2024
VHND

323.004.180

4.500.000

Dec, 31, 2024
VHD

4285 714.316

1. 789,630,000

Year 2023
VHND

241.444.800

B.505.710.648

Jan. 01, 2024
VND

356.011.120

4.295.714.3186

1.789.390.000
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These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

8.3

8.4

B.5

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Other related parties Transactions VMD VND
Other receivablas
Advance for Real
Mr: Le Vist Hai and Mrs, Bui Mgoc Mal Estate Purchases 120.000.000.000 120.000.000.000
Mrs. Pham Thi CQuoc Huang () Advance 3BG6.385.063.700 527.058.125.512
Advancs for
Key managemant salary 5 21.168.283.442
Onwa Tech Interior Decoration Jaint
Stock Company Payment fee 1.944.918.073 1.940.418.073
Chividends
Hoa Binh 479 Joint Stock Company receivable 1.877.790.480 1.877.750.480
Payment fee 620.893.878 265.589.280
Short-term trade payables
Onwa Tech Interior Decoration Joint Subcontracting
Stock Company EXpenses 11.707.359.994 11.707.350.924
Short - term accrued eXxpenses
Onwa Tech Interior Decoration Joint Subcontracting
Stock Company E£XPEnses 4.647,789,975 3.728.650.195
Other payables
Mrs. Bui Ngoc Mai Borrowing maney 152.082.000 -
Mr. Vo Minh Hoang Borrowing money - 1.417.911.700

Presentation of consolidated segment asset, revenue and operating result

The Board of Directors of the Graup determines that the types of products and services that the Group
provides are mainly construction and installation business, concentrated in the territory of Vietnam.
Therefore, the Group's report doss not present segment reports,

Subsequent events after the fiscal year

In addition, there were no material events occurring after the end of the fiscal year as at December 3, 2024
that would require adjustment or disclosure in these consalidated financial statements

Other Information

The Head of the District 01 Civil Judgment Enforcement Office shall execute the judgment against Sunshine
Saigon Group Joint Stock Company according ta Decision No. 350/QD-CCTHADS dated 4 July 2024 and
Decision on account freezing No. 160/QD-CCTHADS dated 5 July 2024 with the amount of VMD
168,135,193 532, which the Parent Company received on 31 July 2024,

On 17 February 2025, the company received the Appeal Judgment Mo 285/2024/KDTM-PT of the Hanoi
People's Court, which ruled and ordered the Defendant Sunshine E&C Construction Jaint Stock Company to
perform the following contents:

- Requesting Sunshine E&C Construction Joint Stock Company to pay HBC the total principal + interest -+
penalty equivalent to: VND 94,197,387 093.

- Fram the date of the request for enforcement of the judgment by the Judgment Enforcement Party urtil the
judgment is fully enforced, the Judgment Enforcement Party shall also pay Interest on the remaining amaount
to he enforced at the average overdue debt interest rate on the market at the time of payment corresponding
tar the period of late payment,
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i,
On 26 July 2024, Ha Chi Minh City Stock Exchange announced that HBC shares were subject to mandatory” e
delisting. According to announcement No. 146%TB-SEDHCM of Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange dated .9. RN
August 2024, the effective date of delisting is B September 2024, maving the trading floor from HOSE ;:;:u.-'
Upcom. T

X (=)
-lr;-v_-n,,;:"‘b
On 31 July 2024, major shareholder Hyundai Elevator Ca., LTD transferred 5,000,000 HEC shares. Thy,, / ®

o I -
number of HBC shares after the transaction was 23,060,750 shares, 6.64% of charter capital. i ;;ﬁ‘_
o
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DANG NGUYEN NAM TRANM LE THI THU TRANG LLE VIET HAI
Frepared Chief accountant Chairman

HCMC, 31 March 2025
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